_GreaterCleveland =~ ‘ , 1240 West 6th Street
w Regional Transit Authority Cleveland, Ohio 44113-1302
Phone: 216-566-5100

riderta.com

MEETING NOTICE

Notice is hereby given that the following meeting of the Board of Trustees of the Greater Cleveland
Regional Transit Authority will take place on Tuesday, December 21, 2021 in the Board Room
of the Authority, 1240 West Sixth Street, Cleveland, OH 44113 for consideration of the listed items
and such other items that may properly come before the Board and be acted upon.

This meeting will be live-streamed on RTA's Facebook page (www.facebook.com/rideRTA) for
staff and members of the public. Members of the public may also attend in-person.

Based on Centers for Disease Control (CDC) guidance to continue to avoid large events and
gatherings and Ohio Department of Public Health advice that businesses and other entities may
continue to require mitigation measures, as well as RTA's interest in protecting community and
employee health and safety, the following measures will be in place for in-person attendance:

1. To allow for social distancing, RTA Board Room capacity is limited to forty-four (44)
people. To accommodate members of the public, RTA will limit the number of staff
permitted in the Board Room.

2. All persons entering RTA’s Main Office Building (“MOB”) at 1240 West 6" Street are
required to wear a mask/face covering and maintain a distance of six feet or more from
other individuals who are not members of their family or household. The mask/face
‘covering must be cloth or other fabric and worn to cover the person’s nose, mouth and
chin. If a person entering the building does not have a mask, one can be provided to

them.

3. All persons entering RTA’'s MOB will be temperature screened for COVID-19 in
accordance with guidance provided by the CDC and the Cuyahoga County Board of
Health. If the screening indicates that the person may be infected with COVID-19, that
individual will be denied entry.

The meeting package will be posted on RTA’s website at (www.riderta.com/board), on RTA’s
Facebook page, and RTA'’s Twitter page.

9:00 A.M. Board of Trustees — agenda attached.

i

India L. Birdsong
General Manager, Chief utive Officer

ILB:tab
Attachment



VL.
VII.

VI

XL

X1l

XML

XIV.

AGENDA

RTA Board of Trustees Meeting
Tuesday, December 21, 2021

9:00 a.m.

Call to order

Roll Call

Certification regarding notice of meeting

Approval of the November 16, 2021 Board Meeting minutes

Public comments (2 minutes) on agenda items can be made in person or
phoned in using the dial in information:

Phone: 440-276-4600
Board Governance Committee report

Operational Planning & Infrastructure Commlttee report
‘s Chair: Mr. Terence P. Joyce

Organizational, Services & Performance Monitoring Committee report
e Chair: Mayor Michael P. Byrne

Audit, Safety Compliance and Real Estate Committee report
e Chair: Karen Gabriel Moss

External and Stakeholder Relations and Advocacy Committee report
e Chair: Valarie J. McCall

Community Advisory Committee (CAC)
e Board Liaison: Roberta Duarte

Ad Hoc Committee reports
¢ Ad Hoc Paratransit Committee — President Charles P. Lucas, Chair
¢ Ad Hoc Technology Committee — Luz Pellot, Chair

Introduction of new employees and announcement of promotions

Introduction of resolutions:



RTA Board of Trustees
December 21, 2021

Page 2

A

2021-106 — Authorizing Contract No. 2021-071 with the Segal Company
(Midwest), Inc. DBA Segal to provide a compensation study for a total
contract amount NTE $170,000.00 (General Fund, Human Resources
Department budget)

2021-107 — Authorizing Contract No. 2021-176 with MNJ Technologies
Direct, Inc. to provide laptop computers, docking stations and desktop
computers, as specified, in an amount not to exceed $494,722.00 (RTA
Development Fund, Innovation and Technology Department budget)

2021-108 — Amending Section 460.03 of the Codified Rules and Regulations
of the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority

2021-109- Amending Chapter 297 of the Codified Rules and Regulations of
the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority

2021-110— Repealing Chapter 852 of the Codified Rules and Regulations of
the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority

2021-111—- Amending appropriations for the current expenses and other
expenditures for the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority, as
adopted in Resolution Nos. 2020-101, 2021-019, 2021-064 and 2021-074
and increasing the transfer to the Reserve Fund by $85,000,000

2021-112~ Making appropriations for the current expenses and other

-expenditures for the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority during

Fiscal Year (“FY") 2022

2021-113 — Amending budget appropriations for the FY 2022 Capital
Improvement Fund budget to provide for an increase of $34,200,000

2021-114- Authorizing the establishment of a three-year Overall Annual
Goal for Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) participation in the
Authority’s federally funded contract procurement opportunities for Federal
Fiscal Years 2022 thru 2024, and it's submission to the Federal Transit
Administration

2021-115 — Authorizing the purchase of property insurance from various
insurance underwriters through AON Risk Services Northeast, Inc. for a
period of twelve (12) months for a total contract amount not to exceed
$1,183,061.00 (General Fund, Risk Management Department budget)

2021-116 — Authorizing a salary adjustment for Anthony A. Garofoli,
Executive Director of Internal Audit



RTA Board of Trustees
December 21, 2021

_Page3

XV.

XVL.
XVIL.
XVII.
XIX.

XXIi.

Secretary-Treasurer's Report:

General Fund Revenue - status as of November 30, 2021 versus 2020
actuals A _

General Fund Revenue — status as of November 30, 2021 versus the 2021
budget

Sales & Use Tax Receipts Report budgeted during 2021, actual receipts
through December 2021

Inventory of Treasury Investments as of November 30, 2021

Debt Service Schedule and Status of Bond Retirement Fund (cash basis) as
of November 30, 2021

Summary of Investment Performance, Year to Date through November 30,
2021

Report on Investment Earnings (cash basis) as of November, 2021
Composition of Investment Portfolio as of November 30, 2021

Banking and Financial Relationships as of November 30, 2021

-~I® m mo O o >

General Manager's Report
President’s Report
Old Business

New Business

Public comments (2 minutes) on non-agenda items can be made in person or
phoned in using the dial in information:

Phone: 440-276-4600

The next regular Board meeting is scheduled for Tuesday, January 25, 2022 in
the Board Room of the Authority, Root-McBride Building, 1240 West Sixth Street,
Cleveland, Ohio 44113. This meeting will be live-streamed on RTA’s Facebook
page (www.facebook.com/rideRTA) for staff and members of the public.

Adjournment



.Minutes : :
RTA Board of Trustees Meeting
10:09 a.m. November 16, 2021
Present: Lucas (Chair), Moss (Vice-Chair), Byrne, Duarte, Koomar, McCall, Pellot, Serrano, Weiss

Not present: Joyce

Staff: Benford, Birdsong, Caver, Dangelo, Freilich, Garofoli, Gautam, Johnson, Kirkland, Krecic, Miller,
Mothes, Petit, Schipper, Sutula, Talley, Togher, Walker-Minor,

Public: Gibbons, Loh, Pinkney-Butts, Rodriquez

President Lucas called the meeting to order at 10:09 a.m. The secretary called the roll and reported
that nine (9) board members were present.

This meeting was live-streamed on RTA’s Facebook page (www.facebook.com/rideRTA) for staff and
members of the public. Based on Centers for Disease Control guidance to continue to avoid large
events and gatherings and Ohio Department of Public Health advice that businesses may continue to
require mitigation measures, as well as RTA’s interest in protecting community and employee health
and safety, several measures were put in place for in-person attendance, which are spelled out on the
meeting notice. The public was allowed to attend the meeting in-person.

The Secretary advised that notice of this meeting have been posted more than twenty-four hours in
advance of the meeting, that the usual notification has been given the news media and other
interested persons, and that all requirements of the Ohio Revised Code and Rules and Bylaws of thIS

Board regarding notice of meeting have been complied with.

Minutes
President Lucas stated that the minutes from the October 26, 2021 Board meeting had been

previously distributed and reviewed, and asked whether there were any additions and/or corrections.
There were no corrections. The minutes were approved.

Rev. Lucas attended the APTA Annual Conference in Orlando, FL on behalf of RTA and the Board.
He will share information he brought back with staff. He thanked the staff for their support and Vice

President Moss for approving his trip.

Public Comments — Agenda ltems (comments were submitted in-person and by phone)

1. Rev. Pamela Pinkney-Butts — Cleveland, OH — She is the former chaplain for the East
Cleveland Chapter of League of Women Voters and the former chaplain for Black on Black
Crime Inc. She is the founder for the Heterosexual International Clergy Alliance. Sheis
concerned with all the agenda items. She asked for more information about Resolution
Numbers 100, 101 and 103. Who are the contractors and how are they affecting our
community through public transit. Who made the NextGen name decision. The voters need

to have input.

2. Hayes Rowan — Cleveland, OH — He asked if the Board considered the bus idling policy and
practices and public records request of bus and CCTV when there is operator misconduct. He
ask for the baby stroller policy to be reviewed and enforced and for an ergonomics audit of
paratransit coaches and minivans. Ms. Birdsong asked for the Operations staff to review and

get back to Mr. Rowan about the outcome.




RTA Board

of Trustees

November 16, 2021

Page 2 of 5

Committee

Reports

There were

Community

no reports.

Advisory Committee (CAC)

There were

no reports.

Ad Hoc Committee Reports

Ms. Peliot said the Ad Hoc Tech Committee would meet Nov. 18 at 5 p.m.

Introduction of New Employees/Promotions

New Hires:

. Heath Bowman — Transportation Safety Specialist
. Wayne Colonna — Risk Analyst il

. Tyronne Bailey — Operator

. Sherrelle Scott — Talent Management Coordinator

Bilesha Herndon — Laborer

. Latrice Hauser — Operator
. Timothy Chatmon — Laborer

. Otm

1
2
3
4
5. Delfin Figueroa — Signal Technician
6
7
8
9

ane Elansari — Electrical Equipment Maintainer

10. David Skillern — Janitor

11. Michael Oswalt — Operator
12. Sir Baron Williams — Operator
13. Harold Hansbro — Laborer

14. Tareckia Hudson — Operator

15. Man

letoe Hurt — Operator

16. Sonja Bivens — Operator
17. Arthemus Herndon — Operator
18. Justin Sims - Operator

Promotions:
1. Amy Snell — Senior Planner

Introduction

of Resolutions:

A

2021-100 - Authorizing a change order to exercise an option under Contract
2020-071 with Gillig, LLC for the purchase and delivery of up to 20, 40-ft. low floor
CNG coaches, as specified, for a price not to exceed $11,211,397.40 (RTA
Development Fund, Fleet Management Department budget), the adoption of
which was moved by Mr. Serrano, seconded by Chief McCall and approved by
unanimous vote.

2021-101 — Authorizing Contract No. 2021-098 with Brokaw, Inc. to provide advertising
services for a period of one year in an amount not to exceed $850,000.00, with two, one-
year options in an amount not to exceed $850,000.00 for each option year, for a total
contract amount not to exceed $2,550,000.00 (General Fund, Administration & External
Affairs Department budget), the adoption of which was moved by Chief McCall, seconded
by Mayor Koomar and approved by unanimous vote.



RTA Board of Trustees
November 16, 2021
Page 3 Of 5 i o e et s A e ot e o 2 i

2021-102 — this resolution was pulled and will be presented at a later date. It is under
going a Procurement technical review.

C. 2021-103 — Authorizing Contract No. 2021-105 with Harsco Rail, LLC to provide an
Occupied Zone Warning System for a total contract amount NTE $335,000.00 (RTA
Development Fund, Engineering and Project Development Department budget), the
adoption of which was moved by Mr. Serrano seconded by Ms. Pellot and approved by
unanimous vote.

D. 2021-104 — Authorizing Contract No. 2021-164 with CBTS, LLC DBA CBTS Technology
Solutions, LLC to provide Next Generation Telephone Service for a base one-year period
in an amount not to exceed $205,000.00, with two one-year options in amounts not to
exceed $205,000.00 per option year, for a total contract amount not to exceed
$615,000.00 through the State of Ohio, Department of Administrative Services
Cooperative Purchasing Program (General Fund, Innovation and Technology Department
budget), the adoption of which was moved by Mr. Serrano, seconded by Mayor Byrne and
approved by unanimous vote.

E. 2021-105 - Authorizing Contract No. 2021-165 with Computer Sciences Corporation, a
DXC Technology Company to provide Riskmaster to assure claims migration, software,
and services in an amount NTE $114,870.00 for base year one, and in an amount not to
exceed $59,077.00 for each of the two additional years, for a total contract amount NTE
$233,024.00 for the three-year period (RTA Capital and General Funds, Innovation and
Technology Department budget), the adoption of which was moved by Mayor Byrne,
seconded by Chief McCall and approved by unanimous vote.

Secretary-Treasurer's Report

Rajan Gautam, Deputy General Manager of Finance and Secretary-Treasurer, gave the report. The
unemployment data for Cuyahoga County and Ohio compared to the U.S is from the Bureau of Labor
Statistics. September 2021, the U.S. rate dropped from 5.2% to 4.8%. The Ohio rate remained at
5.4%. The county rate dropped to 4.9%. In October, the U.S. rate dropped to 4.6%, which has been
the lowest in nearly two years. Ridership still remains low compared to pre-COVID levels. The 2021
ridership was steady from May to July and increased by 8% in August and September when
compared to the previous month. October ridership decreased by 11.9% when compared to 2020.
YTD ridership is 14.3% below 2020 levels.

Passenger fares (PF) and sales tax represent the largest source of revenue. PF has increased by 5%
in October. YTD passenger fares are 14.1% lower than 2020. Sales tax has remained strong.
November receipts, which is based on August activity, is 18.9% higher than November 2020. YTD we
are 13.9% higher than 2020. Of the sales tax base, 18 of 23 categories are positive. Comparing
November 2021 to November 2020, motor vehicles and watercrafts was 6.8% higher. Online sales
are 36.4% higher. Regular and statewide sales were 23.2% higher. This is the fourth consecutive
month were liquor receipts were less than the previous year at 9.9% less than November 2020. YTD

liquor sales are 12.4% higher than last year.

Through October 2021 CRRSAA funds of $67.4 million are fully drawdown. ARP funds of $54.8
million has been drawn down and $81.3 million will be drawn down in 2022. Federal stimulus funds
for the Operating budget is $98.8 million. Unfunded capital projects is $152.2 million and Debt
reduction is $60 million totaling $315 million. Mayor Weiss asked if the unfunded capital projects
have not been funded. Is this the last piece from the 2022 budget? Mr. Gautam said back in May



RTA Board of Trustees
November 16, 2021
Page 4 of 5

2021 when the Board approved the CIP, unfunded and underfunded projects were identified for $344
million. This became a strategic effort to say how the funds will be used. The $156 million was
allocated to further reduce the number. They will accomplish this by the reduction in the preventative
maintenance dollars/capital funds we were permitted to use to support operations ranging from $15
million - $20 million a year. The commitment included no more than $1 million, which is largely
reserved to close out some grants, etc. A significant amount of those dollars will be used to address
the unfunded capital projects.

General Manager/CEQO Report

India Birdsong, General Manager/CEO, presented the report. RTA has a vaccination incentive
program for employees to ensure the staff is healthy. The program will provide $500 to employees
who submit a valid vaccination card through Dec. 31, 2021. The plan is to boost the vaccination rate
during the holiday season and cold/flu season. Participation doubled once the incentive program was
announced. To date 958 vaccine cards were reported. This is not a vaccine mandate. Currently 281
COVID cases have been reported since March 2020. Moreover, 262 employees have returned to
work. We have 2,300 employees. There were spikes during the winter months in quarter four last
year. The mobile vaccine bus will rotate through the districts to give vaccines. Hayden District had
54 vaccines given in one day.

Staff attended an information exchange with the Port Authority in Pittsburgh, PA. They met with
Katharine Kelleman, CEO & Mike Heidkamp, COO. They looked at their rail operation and busway
and historic Incline Wheelhouse. They talked about hiring practices and labor practices. They are in
negotiations with their labor unions as well. They visited RTA’s operations a few months ago. The
Holiday Train will return this year. The Holiday Trolley will be new this year during the Holiday
Lighting, Nov. 27 at Public Square for Winter Fest. An ad campaign called The Month of Merry
running Nov. 15 - Dec. 23 is supposed to re-engage customers. There will be radio, social media
and ads on RTA assets. There will also be prizes for an online quiz.

The Opportunity Corridor ribbon cutting was held recently. This is a new roadway from E. 105 to

E. 55", Several leaders attended including Mayor Frank Jackson and Dr. Marchbanks of ODOT.

Dr. Marchbanks also visited our rail facility. RTA is part of the mission and vision for the greater
Cleveland area. RTA completed station construction on several stations in the corridor. Staff
attended a ground breaking for Woodhill Homes with several city and federal leaders. These type of
projects are paramount in connecting RTA with the community.

The Employee Workplace Experience survey was administered Sept. 7 through October 1, 2021.
Nearly 900 employees responded, a 50% increase over 2020. The results will be used to develop
programs in 2022. There are areas of improvement for supervisor, investment in employees and
programs. APTA awarded RTA with the 2021 Rail COVID-19 Gold Award for the use of the
Moonbeam 3 disinfecting technology. RTA was one of the first to use it on public transit. It is canine
friendly and no liquids are dispersed during its use.

President’'s Report

President Lucas witnessed RTA receiving the APTA Gold Award. He requested it be brought to a
Board Meeting.

Old Business

The Board reviewed the proposed 2022 Board and Committee Meeting schedule and moved to
approve the dates.



RTA Board of Trustees
November 16, 2021
_PageSof5

Public Comments — Non-Agenda ltems (comments were submitted in-person and phone)

1.

Rev. Pinkney-Butts — She ask that the cameras be checked on the vehicles. She ask that the
Superior rapid be checked for updates. How long will people ride free on the train. We're
spending too much money policing and not getting people to places safely.

Larry Rodriquez —~ He is a member of NOBLE. Paratransit operators are not being given funch
breaks. They are essential to our mobility and independence.

Loh — RTA should use a webform for people who can’t submit public comments or having
technical difficulties. RTA should consider using YouTube for meetings. The County uses
Zoom and YouTube to livestream. Are all the buses taking people where they need to go.
Sherwin Williams and NextConnects will change the routes. We need to level up our

customer service.

Brian Gibbons — He is a member of CPT and rides the #22. He suggested RTA consider
having meetings in the evening for those who can't attend early meetings.

Hayes Rowan — He asked for a response to buses idling and the stroller policy. Ms. Birdsong
stated that staff would follow up.

Upcoming Meetings

The next regular Board meeting is scheduled for Tuesday, December 21, 2021 in the Board Room of
the Authority, Root-McBride Building, and 1240 West Sixth Street, Cleveland, Ohio 44113. This
meeting will be live streamed on RTA’s Facebook page for staff and members of the public at -
www.facebook.com/riderta The public is allowed to attend in-person.

The meeting was adjourned at 10:57 a.m.

Attest:

President

Secretary-Treasurer



o Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority
_oune  HQEFE STAFF SUMMARY AND COMMENTS

TITLE/DESCRIPTION: Resolution No.:
. 2021-106

CONTRACT: COMPENSATION STUDY
Date:

VENDOR: THE SEGAL COMPANY (MIDWEST), INC. DBA Daeiember 16. 2021

SEGAL :

Initiator:

AMOUNT: NTE $170,000.00 v
Human Resources

ACTION REQUEST:
Approval 0O Review/Comment 0O Information Only O Other

1.0 PURPOSE/SCOPE: This action will allow the Authority to enter into a contract to provide
a comprehensive compensation study.

2.0 DESCRIPTION/JUSTIFICATION: Approximately 320 of the Authority’s 2,200 employees
are categorized as non-bargaining in various management, professional, technical and
administrative positions. Positions are graded on a point-factor system that was originally
designed and implemented in 1995. This system has not been reviewed since its
inception, leading to an outdated compensation structure and lack of attention to special
market challenges, such as technical or other high demand positions. The salary ranges
have been updated only sporadically over the past several years due to budget
constraints, leading to limited salary growth for existing employees and inability to attract

new talent.

3.0 PROCUREMENT BACKGROUND: The Request for Proposals (RFP) was posted on the
GCRTA Procurement web site on May 24, 2021 and advertised in the local newspapers.
Notifications were sent to four potential proposers. Nineteen interested parties
downloaded the solicitation and two proposals were received on July 9, 2021.

After evaluation by a panel of Authority employees in accordance with established
Procurement Department policies and procedures, the proposal of The Segal Company
(Midwest), Inc. dba Segal to provide a comprehensive compensation study in a negotiated
amount not to exceed $170,000.00, was determined to be the most advantageous to the
Authority, price and all other factors considered.

A cost analysis was performed and the Procurement Department has determined that the
price is fair and reasonable to the Authority.

4.0 AFFIRMATIVE ACTION/DBE BACKGROUND: All Affirmative Action requirements have
been met. A 0% DBE goal was established for this procurement due to the lack of certified

DBE firms.
5.0 POLICY IMPACT: Does not apply.

6.0 ECONOMIC IMPACT: This procurement shall be funded through the General Fund,
Human Resources Department budget, in a total amount not to exceed $170,000.00.

7.0 ALTERNATIVES: Reject this offer. Rejection of this offer would prevent or delay the
Authority from updating its compensation and salary administration for non-bargaining

employees.




Staff Summary & Comments 2021-106
Compensation Study
Page 2

8.0 RECOMMENDATION: This procurement was discussed at the December 7, 2021
Organizational, Services & Performance Monitoring Committee meeting. Itis
recommended that the offer of The Segal Company (Midwest), Inc. dba Segal be
accepted and the resolution passed authorizing the General Manager, Chief Executive

Officer to enter into a contract.

9.0 ATTACHMENTS: None.

Recommended and certified as appropriate to the
availability of funds, legal form and conformance with the
Procurement requirements.

General Manager, Chief Executivé Offlcer
{




RESOLUTION NO. 2021-106

AUTHORIZING CONTRACT NO. 2021-071 WITH THE SEGAL COMPANY
(MIDWEST), INC. DBA SEGAL TO PROVIDE A COMPENSATION STUDY FOR
A TOTAL CONTRACT AMOUNT NTE $170,000.00 (GENERAL FUND, HUMAN
RESOURCES DEPARTMENT BUDGET)

WHEREAS, the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority requires a qualified firm to
provide a comprehensive compensation study; and

WHEREAS, the proposal of The Segal Company (Midwest), Inc. dba Segal with an
office located at 333 West 34" Street, New York, New York 10001, for providing a
compensation study in an amount not to exceed $170,000.00 was received on July 9, 2021; and

WHEREAS, the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer, deems the offer of The Segal
Company (Midwest), Inc. dba Segal, as negotiated, to provide a comprehensive compensation
study, to be in the best interest of the Authority and recommends acceptance thereof by the
Board of Trustees.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Authority, Cuyahoga County, Ohio:

Section 1. That the offer from The Segal Company (Midwest), Inc. dba Segal to provide
a comprehensive compensation study, as modified by negotiations, be and the same is hereby

accepted.

Section 2. That the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer of the Authority be and
she'is hereby authorized to enter into a contract with The Segal Company (Midwest), Inc. dba
Segal to provide a comprehensive compensation study.

Section 3. That said contract shall be payable from the General Fund, Human
Resources Department budget, for a total contract amount not to exceed $170,000.00.

Section 4. That said contract shall be binding upon and an obligation of the Authority
contingent upon future funding, compliance by the contractor to the Specifications and
Addenda, if any; the Affirmative Action Plan adopted by the Board of Trustees; bonding and
insurance requirements and all applicable laws relating to contractual obligations of the

Authority.

Section 5. That the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority’s Board of Trustees
expects that The Segal Company (Midwest), Inc. dba Segal, will attempt to exceed the 0%
minimum DBE goal assigned to this procurement.

Section 6. That this resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption.

Adopted: December 21, 2021

President

Attest:

Secretary-Treasurer



o Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority
[ l\Tll STAFF SUMMARY AND COMMENTS

TlTLE/DESCRlPTION Resolution No.:
CONTRACT: LAPTOP COMPUTERS, DOCKING STATIONS AND 2021-107
DESKTOP COMPUTERS Date:

VENDOR:  MNJ TECHNOLOGIES DIRECT, INC. lDicfmber 16, 2021
nivator;

AMOUNT:  NTE $494,722.00 | | .
Innovation and
Technology

ACTION REQUEST:
Approval O Review/Comment O Information Only 0O Other

1.0

2.0

3.0

PURPOSE/SCOPE: This resolution will authorize the Authority to enter into a contract for
the purchase of 304 laptop computers, 304 docking stations and 89 desktop computers.

DESCRIPTION/JUSTIFICATION: The Authority’s current fleet of hardware is outdated
(between 4-8+ years). Because the operating system (Windows 7) is no longer supported
by Microsoft, updates are no longer available, posing a security risk to the Authority.
These computers lack the security, functionality, capability and technology for employees
to perform daily tasks and meet objectives. Based upon the recent Coronavirus .
pandemic, the Authority deemed a Work from Anywhere (WFA) initiative to be a necessity
in order to keep daily business functions going in the event of another pandemic. The
constraints of the current hardware (desktops and laptops) do not meet the needs
necessary to achieve this initiative as such new laptops and desktops are needed.
Upgrading the current fleet of hardware is a must so that employees have the capability to
perform their duties remotely at peak efficiency. As the Authority moves forward with
more cloud-based solutions, the need for more processing speed, memory and hard drive
space is necessary to meet the demands of emerging technology. This equipment is
available through the State of Ohio, Department of Administrative Services, Cooperative

Purchasing Program.

PROCUREMENT BACKGROUND: Section 306.43(H)(4) of the Ohio Revised Code
provides political subdivisions within the State of Ohio the opportunity to participate in
contracts negotiated and executed by the State of Ohio, Department of Administrative
Services, Cooperative Purchasing Program for the purchase of supplies, services,
equipment and certain materials. The Board of Trustees has authorized the General
Manager, Chief Executive Officer to utilize such contracts in Section 410.03 of the
Codified Rules and Regulations of the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority. The
State of Ohio Cooperative Purchasing Program includes a contract with MNJ
Technologies Direct, Inc. under State Term Schedule No. 534411 for this equipment. This
contract was a result of a competitive solicitation and award process. The Authority will
purchase 304 laptop computers at a unit price of $1,240.00, 304 docking stations at a unit
price of $176.00, and 89 desktop computers at a unit price of $722.00, resulting in a total
contract amount not to exceed $494,722.00.

A cost analysis was performed by the Procurement Department, and it has been
determined that the price is fair and reasonable to the Authority.



Staff Summary & Comments 2021-107
Laptops, Docking Stations and Desktop Computers
Page 2

4.0

5.0

6.0

7.0

8.0

9.0

AFFIRMATIVE ACTION/DBE BACKGROUND: The Office of Business Development
does not conduct Affirmative Action reviews or establish goals on procurement included in
the State Cooperative Purchasing program.

POLICY IMPACT: Does not apply.

ECONOMIC IMPACT: This procurement shall be payable from the RTA Development
Fund, Innovation and Technology Department budget, 100% Local funds in an amount not
to exceed $494,722.00.

ALTERNATIVES: Reject this offer. Rejection of this offer would leave the Authority
without the ability to eliminate the substantial cybersecurity risk posed by using computers
with a Windows 7 operating system and it also hinders the success of the Work from
Anywhere initiative which is necessary to keep daily business functions going in the event
of another pandemic or similar emergency situation.

RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that the offer of MNJ Technologies Direct, Inc.
be accepted, and the resolution passed authorizing the General Manager, Chief Executive
Officer to enter into a contract.

ATTACHMENTS: None.

Recommended and certified as appropriate to the
availability of funds, legal form and conformance with the
Procurement requirements.

7 -

Genéfal Manager, Chief Executive @fficer




RESOLUTION NO. 2021-107

AUTHORIZING CONTRACT NO. 2021-176 WITH MNJ TECHNOLOGIES
DIRECT, INC. TO PROVIDE LAPTOP COMPUTERS, DOCKING STATIONS
AND DESKTOP COMPUTERS, AS SPECIFIED, IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO
EXCEED $494,722.00 (RTA DEVELOPMENT FUND, INNOVATION AND
TECHNOLOGY DEPARTMENT BUDGET) '

WHEREAS, the Authority has the need to purchase 304 laptop computers, 304 docking
stations and 89 desktop computers, as specified; and

WHEREAS, such computer equipment is available through the State of Ohio,
Department of Administrative Services, Cooperative Purchasing Program; and

WHEREAS, Section 306.43 (H)(4) of the Ohio Revised Code provides political
subdivisions within the State of Ohio the opportunity to participate in contracts executed by the
State of Ohio, Department of Administrative Services; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees has authorized utilization of the Cooperative
Purchasing Program in Section 410.03 of the Authority’s Codified Rules and Regulations; and

WHEREAS, MNJ Technologies Direct, Inc. with an office located at 1025 Busch Pkwy,
Buffalo Grove, lllinois 60089-4504 offered to provide 304 laptop computers at a unit price of
$1,240.00, 304 docking stations at a unit price of $176.00, and 89 desktop computers at a unit
price of $722.00, resulting in a total contract amount not to exceed $494,722.00; and

WHEREAS, the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer deems it in the best interest
of the Authority to utilize the State of Ohio Cooperative Purchasing Program for obtaining said
service and recommends acceptance thereof by the Board of Trustees.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Authority, Cuyahoga County, Ohio:

Section 1. That the offer from MNJ Technologies Direct, Inc. to provide 304 laptop
computers, 304 docking stations and 89 desktop computers, as specified, be and the same is
hereby accepted.

Section 2. That the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer of the Authority be and
she is hereby authorized to enter into a contract with MNJ Technologies Direct, Inc. to provide
these laptops, docking stations and desktop computers, as specified.

Section 3. That said contract is entered into under the authority granted by Ohio
Revised Code Section 306.43(H)(4) and under the terms of the State of Ohio Cooperative
Purchasing Program.

Section 4. This procurement shall be payable from the RTA Development Fund,
Innovation and Technology Department budget, 100% Local funds in an amount not to exceed

$494,722.00.

Section 5. That said contract shall be binding upon and an obligation of the Authority
contingent upon compliance by the contractor with the Specifications and Addenda, if any; the
Affirmative Action Plan adopted by the Board of Trustees; bonding and insurance requirements
and all applicable laws relating to contractual obligations of the Authority.



Resolution No. 2021-107
Page 2

Section 6. That this resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption.

Adopted: December 21, 2021

President

Attest:

Secretary-Treasurer



ggfg_lgo;"m Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority
@ i’ & STAFF SUMMARY AND COMMENTS
TITLE/DESCRIPTION: Resolution No.:

2021-108

AMENDING SECTION 460.03 OF THE CODIFIED RULES AND Date:
REGULATIONS OF THE GREATER CLEVELAND REGIONAL December 16, 2021

TRANSIT AUTHORITY Initiator:

Finance

ACTION REQUEST:

Approval 0O Review/Comment 0O Information Only 0 Other

1.0

2.0

3.0
4.0

5.0

6.0
7.0

8.0

9.0

PURPOQOSE/SCOPE: This resolution will amend Section 460.03, Reserve Fund of the
Codified Rules and Regulations (“Code”) of the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit
Authority.

DESCRIPTION/JUSTIFICATION: The Policies and Procedures of the Board of Trustees
were codified in 1989, pursuant to Resolution 1989-176. The Code Book is now
undergoing a comprehensive review and update so that the Code will conform to the
current structure and operations of the Authority. The proposed amendment adds a sub-
account to the Authority’s Reserve Fund to provide for a reserve to protect against
substantial decreases in revenues.

PROCUREMENT BACKGROUND: Does not apply.
AFFIRMATIVE ACTION/DBE BACKGROUND: Does not apply.

POLICY IMPACT: Adoption of the resolution will provide for the Authority to maintain a
reserve to protect against substantial decreases in revenue.

ECONOMIC IMPACT: Does not apply.

ALTERNATIVES: Not adopting this resolution. Not adopting this resolution would result
in a policy that does not allow for the Authority to maintain a reserve to protect against
substantial decreases in revenues.

RECOMMENDATION: This resolution was discussed at the December 7, 2021
Committee of the Whole meeting and recommended for consideration by the full Board
of Trustees. It is recommended that this resolution be adopted.

ATTACHMENT: A. Red-line of proposed amendments to Section 460.03

Recommended and certified as appropriate to the availability of funds, legal
form and conformance with the Procurement requirements.

o
e s

General Manager, Chief EXgoutive Officer




ATTACHMENT A TO STAFF SUMMARY

460.03 RESERVE FUND.
(a) A Reserve Fund containing sub-accounts may be established and maintained to
protect the Authority from economic downturns.
(b) The Reserve Fund sub-accounts and criteria for management and balances are
below.

(1) Reserve for fuel: Annual savings resulting when actual expenditures are less
than the budgeted line item for fuel may be placed in this subaccount to protect
the Authority from a significant and continuing rise in fuel prices.

(2) Reserve for compensated absences: Excess funds from the General Fund may be
placed in this sub-account to ensure payment to employees for vacation time
that has been earned. This reserve shall not exceed twenty-five percent of the
accrued liability for compensated absences.

(3) Reserve for hospitalization: Excess funds from the General Fund may be placed
in this sub-account to protect against substantial cost increases from unfunded
mandates or out of the ordinary costs for catastrophic illnesses. The reserve
shall not exceed ten percent of annual hospitalization costs.

(4) Reserve for 27th payroll expense: The authority has two different payroll cycles;
one cycle for hourly employees and one for salaried employees. Within each
cycle, there is an extra pay date (27th payroll expense) that occurs every twelve
years. This reserve shall be funded to the best of the Authority's ability in order
to plan for this additional payroll expense.

(5) A Rolling Stock Replacement Fund account may be established to set aside funds
to systematically replace aging revenue vehicles. Funds should be amassed in
this replacement fund and then transferred to the Capital Improvement Fund to
assist in meeting this major capital requirement.

(6) Reserve for Revenue Stabilization: Excess funds from the General Fund may be
placed in this sub-account to protect against substantial decreases in revenues.
Funds should be amassed in this stabilization fund and then transferred to the
General Fund when needed to maintain a one-month ending balance.

(Res. 2020-97. Passed 12-15-20. Res. 2021-XX. Passed 12-XX-21.)




~ RESOLUTION NO. 2021-108

AMENDING SECTION 460.03 OF THE CODIFIED RULES AND
REGULATIONS OF THE GREATER CLEVELAND REGIONAL
TRANSIT AUTHORITY

WHEREAS, pursuant to Resolution No. 1989-176, the Board of Trustees of the Authority
codified the resolutions establishing its policies and procedures; and

WHEREAS, the Authority has conducted a review and determined that Section
460.03, Reserve Fund should be updated to add a sub-account to the Authority’s Reserve
Fund to provide for a reserve to protect against substantial decreases in revenues.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Authority, Cuyahoga County, Ohio:

Section 1. That Section 460.03, Reserve Fund is hereby enacted to read as specified in
Attachment A hereto.

Section 2. That the Board of Trustees hereby waives the fourteen-day period provided
for in Article XI, Section 2 of the Bylaws.

Section 3. That this resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption.

Attachment: A. Section 460.03, Reserve Fund

Adopted: December 21, 2021

President

Aftest:

Secretary-Treasurer



460.03 RESERVE FUND.
(a) A Reserve Fund containing sub-accounts may be established and maintained to
protect the Authority from economic downturns.

(b) The Reserve Fund sub-accounts and criteria for management and balances are
below.

(1) Reserve for fuel: Annual savings resulting when actual expenditures are less
than the budgeted line item for fuel may be placed in this subaccount to protect
the Authority from a significant and continuing rise in fuel prices.

(2) Reserve for compensated absences: Excess funds from the General Fund may be
placed in this sub-account to ensure payment to employees for vacation time
that has been earned. This reserve shall not exceed twenty-five percent of the
accrued liability for compensated absences.

(3) Reserve for hospitalization: Excess funds from the General Fund may be placed
in this sub-account to protect against substantial cost increases from unfunded
mandates or out of the ordinary costs for catastrophic illnesses. The reserve
shall not exceed ten percent of annual hospitalization costs.

(4) Reserve for 27th payroll expense: The authority has two different payroll cycles;
one cycle for hourly employees and one for salaried employees. Within each
cycle, there is an extra pay date (27th payroll expense) that occurs every twelve
years. This reserve shall be funded to the best of the Authority's ability in order
to plan for this additional payroll expense.

(5) A Rolling Stock Replacement Fund account may be established to set aside funds
to systematically replace aging revenue vehicles. Funds should be amassed in
this replacement fund and then transferred to the Capital Improvement Fund to
assist in meeting this major capital requirement.

(6) Reserve for Revenue Stabilization: Excess funds from the General Fund may be
placed in this sub-account to protect against substantial decreases in revenues.
Funds should be amassed in this stabilization fund and then transferred to the
General Fund when needed to maintain a one-month ending balance.

(Res. 2020-97. Passed 12-15-20. Res. 2021-XX. Passed 12-XX-21.)



i ‘gc;fg;}:;)szs . % o} Greater ‘Cléve‘lahd Regional Transit AUthOFity
STAFF SUMMARY AND COMMENTS

TITLE/DESCRIPTION: Resolution No.:

2021-109

AMENDING CHAPTER 297 OF THE CODIFIED RULES AND Date:
REGULATIONS OF THE GREATER CLEVELAND REGIONAL December 16, 2021

TRANSIT AUTHORITY Initiator:

Innovation &
Technology

ACTION REQUEST:

Approval 0O Review/Comment O Information Only 0O Other

1.0

2.0

3.0
4.0

5.0

6.0

7.0

8.0

9.0

PURPOSE/SCOPE: This resolution will amend Chapter 297 Office of Information
Technology, of the Codified Rules and Regulations (“Code”) of the Greater Cleveland
Regional Transit Authority.

DESCRIPTION/JUSTIFICATION: The Policies and Procedures of the Board of Trustees
were codified in 1989, pursuant to Resolution 1989-176. The Code Book is now
undergoing a comprehensive review and update. The proposed amendments will update
the existing code provision for the Office of Information Technology to reflect the creation
of the Innovation & Technology Division and the establishment of the position of Deputy
General Manager of Innovation and Technology.

PROCUREMENT BACKGROUND: Does not apply.
AFFIRMATIVE-ACTION/DBE BACKGROUND: Does not apply.

POLICY IMPACT: Adoption of the resolution will bring Chapter 297 of the Code Book in
line with the current structure and operations of the Authority.

ECONOMIC IMPACT: Does not apply.

ALTERNATIVES: Not adopting this resolution. Not adopting this resolution would
result in a policy that remains out of date.

RECOMMENDATION: This resolution was discussed at the December 7, 2021
Committee of the Whole meeting and recommended for consideration by the full Board
of Trustees. It is recommended that this resolution be adopted.

ATTACHMENT: A. Red-line of proposed amendments to Chapter 297

Recommended and cetified as appropriate to the availability of funds, legal
form and conformance with the Procurement requirements.

<General Manager, Chief EXecutive Officer




ATTACHMENT A TO STAFF SUMMARY

CHAPTER 297
Office-of InformationTeehnologylnnovation and Technology Division

D Supervision: 297:03297.02 Exeeutive-
Direetor/ChiefDeputy
General Manager —
Innovation and
Technology

297.02297.01 Composition. Information Officer:

CROSS REFERENCES
Public transportation - see 49 U.S.C.A. 5301 et seq.
Federal Transit Administration, Department of Transportation - see 49 C.F.R.
Ch VI
Table of organization; establishment of departments; salaries -see BYLAWS,
Art. VIHIX, Sec. 43

297:02297.01 COMPOSITION.

The Officeof InformationTechnologylnnovation and Technology Division is

responsible for applications, infrastructure and user support.
(Res. 2015-124. Passed 12-15-15. Res. 2021-XXX. Passed XX-XX-21.)

297.03297.02 EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR/CHIEF INFORMATION-
OEEFICERDEPUTY GENERAL MANAGER - INNOVATION AND
TECHNOLOGY.

There is hereby established in the Office-ef InformationTechnologylnnovation
and Technology Division the unclassified position of Exeeutive Director/Chief
Information-OfficerDeputy General Manager — Innovation and Technology.

(Res. 2015-124. Passed 12-15-15. Res. 2021-XXX. Passed XX-XX-21.)




~ RESOLUTION NO. 2021-109

AMENDING CHAPTER 297 OF THE CODIFIED RULES AND
REGULATIONS OF THE GREATER CLEVELAND REGIONAL

TRANSIT AUTHORITY

WHEREAS, pursuant to Resolution No. 1989-176, the Board of Trustees of the Authority
codified the resolutions establishing its policies and procedures; and

WHEREAS, the Authority has conducted a review and determined that Chapter 297
Office of Information Technology should be updated to reflect the creation of the Innovation
& Technology Division and the establishment of the position of Deputy General Manager of

Innovation and Technology.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Authority, Cuyahoga County, Ohio:

Section 1. That Chapter 297 Office of information Technology is hereby amended to
read as specified in Attachment A hereto.

Section 2. That the Board of Trustees hereby waives the fourteen-day period provided
for in Article XI, Section 2 of the Bylaws.

Section 3. That this resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption.

Attachment: A. Chapter 297 Innovation & Technology Division

Adopted: December 21, 2021
President

Attest:

Secretary-Treasurer



ATTACHMENT A TO RESOLUTION

CHAPTER 297
Innovation and Technology Division
297.01 Composition. 297.02 Deputy General
Manager — Innovation
and Technology
CROSS REFERENCES

Public transportation - see 49 U.S.C.A. 5301 et seq.

Federal Transit Administration, Department of Transportation - see 49 C.F.R.
Ch VI

Table of organization; establishment of departments; salaries -see BYLAWS,
Art. IX, Sec. 3

297.01COMPOSITION.
The Innovation and Technology Division is responsible for applications,

infrastructure and user support.
(Res. 2015-124. Passed 12-15-15. Res. 2021-XXX. Passed XX-XX-21.)

297.02DEPUTY GENERAL MANAGER - INNOVATION AND
TECHNOLOGY.
There is hereby established in the Innovation and Technology Division the

unclassified position of Deputy General Manager — Innovation and Technology.
(Res. 2015-124. Passed 12-15-15. Res. 2021-XXX. Passed XX-XX-21.)



o 320 Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority
STAFF SUMMARY AND COMMENTS

Resolution No.: .

| TITLE/DESCRIPTION:
2021-110

REPEALING CHAPTER 852 OF THE CODIFIED RULES AND Date:
REGULATIONS OF THE GREATER CLEVELAND REGIONAL December 16, 2021

TRANSIT AUTHORITY Initiator:
Operations

ACTION REQUEST:

Approval 0O Review/Comment 0O Information Only O Other

1.0 PURPOSE/SCOPE: This resolution will repeal Chapter 852, Reward Program, of the
Codified Rules and Regulations (“Code”) of the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit

Authority.

2.0 DESCRIPTION/JUSTIFICATION: The Policies and Procedures of the Board of Trustees
were codified in 1989, pursuant to Resolution 1989-176. The Code Book is now
undergoing a comprehensive review and update so that the Code will conform to the
current structure and operations of the Authority. The proposed amendment repeals
Chapter 852 to reflect the fact that this provision is no longer needed.

3.0 PROCUREMENT BACKGROUND: Does not apply.
40 AFFIRMATIVE ACTION/DBE BACKGROUND: Does not apply.

5.0 POLICY IMPACT: Adoption of the resolution will remove Chapter 852, which is
obsolete.

6.0 - ECONOMIC IMPACT: Does not apply.

7.0 ALTERNATIVES: Not adopting this resolution. Not adopting this resolution would
result in a policy that remains out of date.

8.0 RECOMMENDATION: This resolution was discussed at the December 7, 2021
Committee of the Whole meeting and recommended for consideration by the full
Board of Trustees. It is recommended that this resolution be adopted.

9.0 ATTACHMENT: A. Red-line of proposed amendment to Chapter 852
Recommended and certified as appropriate to the
availability of funds, legal form and conformance with

the Procurement requirements.

Y
ol

f’ﬁ/ ooy /”"

G/e’neral Manager, Chief Executive Officer




ATTACHMENT A TO STAFF SUMMARY




RESOLUTION NO. 2021-110

REPEALING CHAPTER 852 OF THE CODIFIED RULES AND
REGULATIONS OF THE GREATER CLEVELAND REGIONAL
TRANSIT AUTHORITY

WHEREAS, pursuant to Resolution No. 1989-176, the Board of Trustees of the Authority
codified the resolutions establishing its policies and procedures; and

WHEREAS, the Authority has conducted a review and determined that Chapter 852
Reward Program should be repealed.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Authority, Cuyahoga County, Ohio:

Section 1. That Chapter 852, Reward Program, is hereby repealed in its entirety.

Section 2. That the Board of Trustees hereby waives the fourteen-day period provided
for in Article XI, Section 2 of the Bylaws.

Section 3. That this resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption.

Adopted: December 21, 2021

President

Attest:

Secretary-Treasurer



ggrggjggo -326 l\ I‘I Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority
S -STAFF SUMMARY AND COMMENTS

TITLE/DESCRIPTION: Resolution No.:
2021-111

AMENDING APPROPRIATIONS FOR THE CURRENT EXPENSES Date:
AND OTHER EXPENDITURES FOR THE GREATER CLEVELAND December 16, 2021
REGIONAL TRANSIT AUTHORITY, AS ADOPTED IN RESOLUTION Initiator:
NOS. 2020-101, 2021-019, 2021-064 AND 2021-074 AND Office of Management
INCREASING THE TRANSFER TO THE RESERVE FUND BY & Budget
$85,000,000

ACTION REQUEST:

Approval 7 Review/Comment r7 Information Only 7 Other

1.0

20

3.0

4.0

5.0

6.0

7.0

8.0

9.0

PURPOSE/SCOPE: This action will authorize an amendment to increase the appropriation in
the General Fund for an increase in the transfer to the Reserve Fund for the Revenue

Stabilization sub-fund.

DESCRIPTION/JUSTIFICATION: The proposed amendment will authorize an increase in the
overall appropriations budget for Fiscal Year (“FY”) 2021 by $85.0 million to be transferred to
the Reserve Fund for the Revenue Stabilization sub-fund, for the benefit of the Authority.

PROCUREMENT BACKGROUND: Does not apply.
DBE/AFFIRMATIVE ACTION BACKGROUND: Does not apply.

POLICY IMPACT: The FY 2021 Budget provides for the revenues and expenditures of the
Authority. The increased appropriation in the General Fund will enable funding to be
transferred to the Reserve Fund for the Revenue Stabilization sub-fund.

ECONOMIC IMPACT: This amendment will increase the transfers to the Reserve Fund by
$85.0 million. These funds will be set aside until they are needed to maintain the 1-month

ending balance.

ALTERNATIVES: Modify or not approve the budget amendment as proposed. This would
prevent the Authority from reserving funding for economic downturns.

RECOMMENDATION: The proposed 2021 Amended General Fund Budget has been
reviewed at the November 16, 2021 and December 7, 2021 Operational Planning &

Infrastructure Committee and is recommended for adoption. It is recommended that the
Board approve the proposed FY 2021 Amended General Fund Budget as proposed herein.

ATTACHMENTS: None

Recommended and certified as appropriate to the availability of funds, legal
form and conformance with the Procurement requirements.

=

Feneral Manager, Chief ExgCutivé Officer




RESOLUTION NO. 2021-111

AMENDING APPROPRIATIONS FOR THE CURRENT EXPENSES AND
OTHER EXPENDITURES FOR THE GREATER CLEVELAND REGIONAL
TRANSIT AUTHORITY, AS ADOPTED IN RESOLUTION NOS. 2020-101,
2021-019, 2021-064 AND 2021-074 AND INCREASING THE TRANSFER TO
THE RESERVE FUND BY $85,000,000

WHEREAS, the Authority has both a legal and managerial requirement to establish the
revenues to be received for the upcoming fiscal year, including all taxes, user fees, and other
types of revenues, as well as estimates of all expenditures or outlays for the operation of this
public transportation system in the fiscal year to be paid or met from said revenue; and

WHEREAS, in order to meet those requirements, a budget for the Greater Cleveland
Regional Transit Authority for the fiscal year beginning January 1, 2021 and ending December
31, 2021 (“FY 2021") was prepared; and

WHEREAS, the Reserve Fund helps to protect the Authority from future economic
downturns, as well as significant increases in fuel and hospitalization costs, to financially plan
for payment of earned vacation hours when an employee separates or retires, to establish a
method to account for future budget years with 27 pay periods, to accumulate sufficient funds to
replace the Authority’s aging revenue vehicles, and to accumulate sufficient funds to mitigate
the losses in revenues; and

WHEREAS, it is in the best interest of the Authority to increase the transfer in the
General Fund to the Reserve Fund by $85.0 million, for the Revenue Stabiliz’ation sub-fund; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees adopted the FY 2021 General Fund Budget on
December 15, 2020 through Resolution No. 2020-101 and on February 16, 2021 through
Resolution No. 2021-019 and on June 29, 2021 through Resolution No. 2021-064 and on July
27, 2021 through Resolution No. 2021-074; and

WHEREAS, the Operational Planning & Infrastructure Committee of the Board of
Trustees reviewed and discussed the proposed increase to the FY 2021 General Fund Budget
on November 16, 2021 and December 7, 2021 and recommended its approval by the Board on
December 21, 2021.

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Authority, Cuyahoga County, Ohio:

Section 1. That the appropriations for the current expenses and other expenditures of
the Authority, during the period of January 1, 2021 through December 31, 2021 (“Fiscal Year
20217), as set forth in Resolution No. 2020-101, adopted by the Board on December 15, 2020
and in February 16, 2021 through Resolution No. 2021-019 and on June 29, 2021 through
Resolution No. 2021-064 and on July 27, 2021 through Resolution No. 2021-074, are hereby
amended as follows:



Resolution No. 2021-111
Page 2

Amended General Fund Balance Analysis
2021 2021 2021
Budget Amended Variance
Budget
(_I_B_g_glnning Balance $ 133,581,757 1% 133,581,757 0
Revenue
Passenger Fares 27,814,100 27,814,100 0
Adwertising & Concessions 1,803,916 1,803,916 ]
Sales & Use Tax 215,720,056 215,720,056 0
Federal Operating Assistance - CARES Act 0 0 0
Federal Operating Assistance - CRRSAA 67,416,467 67,416,467 0
Federal Operating Assistance - ARP 68,100,000 68,100,000 0
Investment Income 2,069,958 2,069,958 0
Other Revenue 1,348,918 1,348,918 0
Reimbursed Expenditures 19,413,919 19,413,919 0
|Total Revenue 403,687,334 403,687,334 0
|Tota! Resources 537,269,091 537,269,091 0
Operating Expenditures
Salaries and Overtime 143,376,531 143,376,531 0
Payroll Taxes and Fringes 54,276,628 54,276,628 0
Fuel ( Diesel, CNG, Prop. Pwr., Gas) 8,182,600 8,182,600 0
Utilities 5,614,454 5,614,454 0
inventory 13,100,000 13,100,000 0
Senices and Material & Supplies 21,157,429 21,157,429 0
Purchase Transportation 9,850,000 9,850,000 0
Other Expenditures 6,928,856 6,928,856 0
Total Operating Expenditures 262,486,498 262,486,498 0
Transfers to (from) Other Funds
Transfer to (from) the Insurance Fund 2,100,000 2,100,000 0
Transfer to (from) the Pension Fund 45,000 45,000 0
Transfers to Resene Fund 10,878,615 95,878,615 85,000,000
Transfers from the Resene Fund o]
Transfers to (from) Capital 0
Bond Retirement Fund 13,835,408 13,835,408 o]
" Bond Defeasance 62,000,000 62,000,000 0
Capital Improvement Fund 43,398,859 43,398,859 0
Total Transfers to (from) Capital 119,234,267 119,234,267 0
Total Transfers to (from) Other Funds 132,257,882 217,257,882 85,000,000
Total Expenditures 394,744,380 479,744,380 85,000,000
Available Ending Balance $ 142,524,711 1 $ 57,524,711 (85,000,000)]

Section 2. That all other provisions of the appropriations for the current expenses and
other expenditures of the Authority, during Fiscal Year 2021, as set forth in Resolution Nos.
2020-101, 2021-019, 2021-064, and 2021-074, not otherwise amended, shall remain in full force

and effect.

Section 3. That this resolution shall become effectively immediately upon its adoption.

Adopted: December 21, 2021

Secretary-Treasurer

President



g%'; 19070 -326 II Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority
STAFF SUMMARY AND COMMENTS

TITLE/DESCRIPTION: Resolution No.:
2021-112

APPROVING THE GREATER CLEVELAND REGIONAL TRANSIT Date:

AUTHORITY’S FISCAL YEAR (“FY”) 2022 BUDGET December 16, 2021
Initiator:
Office of Management
& Budget

ACTION REQUEST:

x Approval 7 Review/Comment [] Information Only 7 Other

1.0 PURPOSE/SCOPE: This action will authorize an Appropriations Budget for Fiscal Year
(“FY") 2022 for the operation of the transit system; for required fund transfers for Capital
Improvements, Bond Retirement, Pension Fund, Reserve Fund, and to maintain the
Insurance Fund minimum balance; for a Capital Budget covering locally-funded and grant-
funded projects; and for the Bond Retirement, Insurance, Supplemental Pension, Reserve,
and Law Enforcement Funds.

2.0 DESCRIPTION/JUSTIFICATION: FY 2022 begins January 1, 2022 and ends December
31, 2022.

The process for developing the Operating Budget for FY 2022 began in July 2021 with the
FY 2022 Tax Budget. It also involved extensive staff analysis and preparation as well as a
meeting of the Board’s Operational Planning & Infrastructure Committee on November 16,
2021. A second presentation was held on December 7, 2021. One public hearing was held
on November 16, 2021 and a second was held on December 7, 2021 to discuss the FY
2022 Budget. The budgets and fund transfers proposed for adoptton herein represent the
Authority’s spending plans for the transit system in 2022.

3.0 PROCUREMENT BACKGROUND: Does not apply.
4.0 DBE/AFFIRMATIVE ACTION BACKGROUND: Does not apply.

5.0 POLICY IMPACT: The FY 2022 appropriation for General Fund expenditures totals
$339,903,950. It includes $208,909,104 for personnel services, providing salaries,
overtime, payroll taxes, and fringe benefit resources needed to fund 2,374.5 FTE positions.
The 2022 Capital Improvement Budget provides for the upkeep of the Authority’s existing
infrastructure, facilities, and equipment, and also provides for the implementation of projects

included in the Long-Range plan.

6.0 ECONOMIC IMPACT: The proposed FY 2022 General Fund appropriations budget and
fund transfers provides for spending $339,903,950 on estimated revenues of $354,394,944

leaving a year-end balance of $84,802,987 as an operating reserve.

7.0 ALTERNATIVES: Modify the proposed FY 2022 General Fund budget by adding or
subtracting expenditures or revenues for specific activities, positions or programs.

8.0 RECOMMENDATION: The proposed FY 2022 Budget has been reviewed by the
Operational Planning & Infrastructure Committee and is recommended for adoption. Itis
recommended that the Board approve the proposed FY 2022 General Fund Budget, Fund
transfers, and budgets for Bond Retirement, Insurance, Supplemental Pension, Reserve,
and Law Enforcement Funds as proposed herein.



Staff Summary & Comments

2022 Budget
Page 2

9.0 ATTACHMENTS:

CSTIOMMOO®r

General Fund Balance Analysis

Financial Policy Goals

Budgeted Positions by Division

Capital Improvement Fund Balance Analysis
Bond Retirement Fund Balance Analysis
Insurance Fund Balance Analysis
Supplemental Pension Fund

Law Enforcement Fund Balance Analysis
Reserve Fund Balance Analysis

All Funds Balance Analysis

Recommended and certified as appropriate to the availability
of funds, legal form and conformance with the Procurement
requirements.

General Manager, Chief Exgedfivé Officer

2021-112



G6Z'YZL'2Z ovo‘ehs'zy 186'208'v8 £66°LLE0L 151'185'ce} — asuejeg bBulpuy sjqe|ieAy

6£8'219'vZ¢ 9.8'Lev'0Ze 056'€06'6EE 98Y'¥69'99y | 0£Y'625'v8E saJnyipuadxy jejo

0L6'9Z.Ly 059181 LY 080°2¥L‘69 vev'vse'Llz | 960°22Z8'LE spung 1ay30 (wouy) o} siaysuel] jejol

562°809°.¢2 Ge0'c9z'le GOP'8ZL'LS 6.9°'0¢6'cLl | Lev'aveez jendes (woiy) o3 sisjsues] jejol
oce’LLy'8l SoL'SL9'glL sov'eez'oy 658°86€E'EY Gz6'i6E'CL pund juawsaoldwyj jejided
0 0 0 G0S'092°LS 0 souesesja puod
656'96€'6 0€6'/p9'8 000'00S°L L SLS'L22'2)L 966'056'v1L pund juswialijay puog

jenden (woJy) 0} siajsuel]

0 0 0 0 (000'0st'L) pun aAIasay Yy} WoYy siajsuel|

G19'8/8'01 G19'8/8'0L §19'88'0L G19'8/8'G6 519'8/8'0L Pun4 sAlas3Yy O} sisjsueld |

000°0v 000'0Y 000'0v 000'st 000°'0S puUn4 uojsuad sy} (wWwoyj) o) Jojsues|

000'000°€ 000'000' 000°005'2 000'0012 0 pund soueinsu| ayy (woJy) o) Jajsuel|

spund Jayjo AEO._t 0} slajsuel ]

626'056'28Z 922'062'6.2 0.8'96/.'v12 266°'669'75¢ yee'col'ove sainjjpuadxy Buneisdo |ejoL
eLy'oolL £0G'e0l’, 0L0'00L°2 €o¥'/18'S €18'e8l's sainjipuadxy JBYi0
058'02¢'6 000°6e2'6 000°051'6 8G2°'02S'8 091'66G°'L uonepodsuel| eseyaind
£85'cL1°22 G19'c86'1L2 102'998'L2 ¥SL'vov'8L 605'608'S1 sajjddng g |euaje pue seoineg
000'00g‘clL 000'002°cl 000°001'¢) €11'185°C1 Sov'Lpe'elL Aiojusauj
209'16e'y ovv'sie'y 9€9'6.L'Yy 920'008‘t L0v'9.5'e ssijnn
8Y71'065'01 $09°005°01 LY LGP0l 60.'609'8 059'08.'8 (sen "imd "doid ‘OND ‘19saiq ) jand
A TANG]S 221'690'65 292'018'8S evl'gee’as 6LL'2ZrLes sabup4 pue sexe] |joihed
166'G81'/S1 Zr9'Zre'est Zve'860'0S) 9/1°'26S'6€) 119'899'8E L SWIBAQ pue salejes

sainjipuadxg BupeladQ

LARAL A 915'616'29¢ 1£6°90L'vZy 6.9'996'9¢S L8L°LLL'SLY $924n0S9Yy _muot

y61'868'v0E 8e5'ziL'ele y6'v6s vse 2TL'pRE'cob | Zel'sgs'ale onuUsAdy _muo._._
000°005°12 0 0 0 0 (uonezijiqe)ls anuaAsY) PuUn4 sAI9SaY WO Jajsues |
000'000'g 000000'S 000°000'S LeL'V8L'8L | 6LL'€96°'02 sainjipuadx3 pasinquiey
000°005°L 000°005°L 000°'00S'L 0v8°'028 0G2'¥9¢ SNUBAaY JaYI0
000'00% 000008 000'009 11£'629 982'869 B8WIodU] JusW}saAuj

0 0 £€£'661'18 880'G18'YS |0 d¥y - soueysissy Buyesadp "pad
0 0 0 L9v'9LY'L9 |0 YVSHYO - aduejsissy bupessdp pad

0 0 0 0 0LL'LL6'LLL 10V S3HVD - soueysissy Bupesadp [esspagy
$89'208'252 692'sv8'L¥e 810'986'CPC 619'122'8€e 89V’ PL'0Le Xe| 9s[) B s8jeg
000'06¢°}L 000'06€'}L 000'06€'L 980'G61l°}1 Gel'lee'e SuoIssadU0) @ Buisiuaapy
018'692'2¢ 66.'9¢6°L2 €95'612'L2 8LS'v0S'LZ v99°vP0've sale Jabuassed

SNUIAIY

ov9‘eys'Ty 286'208'v8 £66'LLE0L 1G2°18G6'SEL G6E°L1S LY mu:m_mm&:_cc_g

uejd uejd yobpng uopoafoud lenjoy
¥2oe €202 [AAITA 1202 0202

sisA|euy aouejeg pung |elauas)
V INJWNHOVLLY



%0 %0’ o0 oy or 0 ok o uojsuedx3
%0°00) | %0°00F | %0°00} %0001 %0001 %06 * %SL 0} soueusjulely EHdRD
%0 | %0k | %giE %8 LY %S"El %01 2 fexded
° ’ ° ¢ ° ¢ 0} uonnquiucH xXe] ssjes
sy 659 €06 8Lt 2L'6 gL< abelaron aoialeg 1qag

Koauadyg lEudEO

s|eos) Aoijod [eioueui
}obpng zzoz

. . . . . = (stauop)
0L 8'L re £t 5’9 wuows | 3 ansesey Bunesedo o

(-
.

%er | %ot | % %0°¢- %LV | e Jeaj iod ymoi9 .m.,

L69ts | so18 | svols L2518 6'G61$ inoy aojueg Jed3sop | F

%se | %98 | %is %Z'6 %01 %52 3 opey Bupeiado 2

ueld | ueld |3ebpng | eyewnsy | [enjpy 1205

vz0z | ezoz | zzoz 1202 0202

8 INJWHOVLLY




- - Attachment C -

FY 2022 Budgeted Positions by Division

2021 2022
Operations Budget Budget  Variance
31 Paratransit 195.5 195.5 -
32 Rall 265.0 254.0 (11.0)
33 Asset & Configuration Management 11.0 11.0 -
34 Transit Police 154.0 153.0 (1.0)
35 Service Management 77.5 77.5 -
36 Rail Power & Way 114.0 123.0 9.0
38 Service Quality Management 66.0 66.0 -
39 Fleet Management 184.0 184.0 -
46 Hayden District 564.5 571.0 6.5
49 Triskett District 433.3 437.8 4.5
58 Intelligent Transportation Systems 9.0 9.0 -
2,073.8 2,081.8 8.0
Finance & Administration
10 Office of Business Development 4.0 4.0 -
60 Accounting 27.0 30.0 3.0
62 Support Services 8.0 8.0 -
64 Procurement 16.0 16.0 -
65 Revenue 18.0 18.0 -
67 Office of Management & Budget 9.0 8.0 (1.0)
82.0 84.0 2.0
Engineering & Project Management
55 Project Support 5.0 5.0 -
57 Programming & Planning 5.0 5.0 -
80 Engineering & Project Development 20.0 20.0 -
30.0 30.0 -
Legal Affairs
15 Safety 7.8 7.8 -
21 Legal 23.0 24.0 1.0
22 Risk Management 8.0 8.0 -
38.8 39.8 1.0
Human Resources
14 Human Resources 17.0 17.0 -
18 Labor & Employee Relations 9.0 11.0 2.0
30 Training & Employee Development 31.0 32.0 1.0
57.0 60.0 3.0
Executive
12 Executive 3.0 3.0 -
16 Board of Trustees 11.0 11.0 -
19 Internal Audit 8.0 8.0 -
220 22.0 -
Administration & External Affairs
53 Administration & External Affairs 20.0 22.0 2.0
Innovation & Technology
61 Innovation & Technology 33.0 35.0 2.0
Total 2,356.5 2,374.5 18.0




011°2¢8'LL Z8y'eZ5°08 L£6'G5.'G9 861°168'GE 26T LEV'ZE asuejeg .m.c_vcw ajqejieAy|
978'Ge5‘ 2L $58°'L¥6'P0L £56°'€£08L2 y80°6.5'VLE  {vbo'OLL'ES) sainjipuadxy jejo |
0 0 0 AN AN 0 sainypuadx3 JaYyo

0 0 €ee'661'18 880'G18'VS 0 BOUEJSISSY YV

0 0 0 L91'9LY' L9 0LL'LL6'LLL YVSHYO / 10V SIHVD - AepnQ jeude)
928'5€5°/21 ¥58°'Lv6' 10l 0Z9'vE8'9El ZSLVLL'LBL  [PIVEEL 1L Aepng |eyndeg

sainjipuadxy

9€6°29¢2°661 9cg’LLp'sal 068'68.'€8Z Z8Z'0LP'0SE  [9E6°LYS'GLE $924n0say |ejol |
Yy yye‘sLL 66£'GLL'6L) 269'826'LZ 066'266°LLE  [2S1'0LL°LLL anuaAdy [ejo L}
0 0 —o 0 pos‘zt anusAsy J8yj0

0 0 0 0 0 $pesd0ld ddinieg 1q8(Q
859°¥8¢" | 865'9€1°01 865'9¢L°01 SLE'Yor'0L 189°20L°2 siuel9 [eyde) ajeis

0 0 ££€£'661°18 880°G18'vS 0 30UB)SISSY dNV

0 0 L9¥'91L1'L9 0LL'L16'LLL SJUE}SISSY YVSHYD /1Y SAYVYD
09¥'c8z'88 969'869'08 962601901 102'e£9'26 LL2°000'2Y sjuels) jeyde) jeiepay
000's9. 000's9z —oco.mmw 000's92 669°6.40°L SWodu] JusuliseAU|
000'000°0} 000'000°01 0000000} 000'000'61 0 pun4 aAlasay WoJj Jajsuel )
9ce'LLy'8l S0L°519'81 Sov'82e ov 658'86E'CY Ges'L6e'el pund [elsuag) woJj Jejsuelt
anuaAay
Z8P'ET5°08 1£6°G5L°G9 861°'158°G¢ 262 LeV'ZE peL'LLE VY aduejeqg mc_::_mmm_
ue|d ue|d 1obpng uojosfoid jenjoy
202 £202 [A41T4 1202 0202

sisAeuy aosuejeg pun juswaaoidwy jejiden

a LNJWHOVLLVY



191°282°L 851°'c9Z°L 819'886°L 8.8'822°C £9£°'9¥6'S aouejeqg m:_v:m_

0S6°LLY'6 0Sy'eLY'6 1002°628°LL 505'y8E'yL 0LL'162'9L sainjipuadx3 jejo |

005} 005‘L 005°L G0SG'094'LS 0 sainjipuadx3 1ayi0

0sy'Lep'L 0S6°198°L 00.'8¢€¢£'2 Jooo'sLz's 0L2'269'S isalsuj

000'G66°L 000°019°2 000'GES'6 000°'S¥E'L1L 000'095'01 fediound
801185 1q0Q
sainypuadxy

211'082°0L 809°9€.°01 8.8'c98'cl z8e'ci9'9l £L0'402°22 sadinosay [ejo |

0 0 0 0 0 Anuz jeuinop Buijiouoday

656'961'6 026°.¥.L'S 1000°5£9°LL 1020°'299'0L 92.'850°G1 anuaAdy |ejoi |

0 0 _o 0 0 anuaAay I1ayi0

0 0 0 Io 0 Spas0ld Wnjwsald puog

000°001 000001 000°'6EL 000°GEL 042'201 8LIODUJ JuSLL}SAAU]

0 0 0 0 0 pun4 juswdojeaaq Y1y Wolj Jajsuel |

0 0 0 G06'09.'25 0 9oueseEaja( - pung |Bjsuag) Wwoly Jajsuel ]

656'06€'6 0€6'219'8 000°00S'L L GLG'LLL2L 966'056'vL pund |elausg woJy 19suel}

anuaAay
851°¢9Z°L 8.9°886'L 8.8'82Z'2 £9£'976°G LYe'ShL L aguejey m:_::_mwm_
ue|d uejd 18bpng uopoefolg [enjoy
202 £20¢ (444 1202 0c0e

sisAjeuy aouejeg pun4 juswalsy puog

3 LINJWHOVLLY



811'850°G 8L1°190's 811°¥20°S 8/1'28¥'S £6.°228'S ajuejeg m:_n:m_
000'810°¢ 000'810°¢ jooo‘ees‘ 519'08V'2 S0¥'851°Z sainjipuadx3 [ejo |
0 0 0 0 sainypuadx3 Jayio
000'8L0'e 000’810’ 000°€66'2 S19°08¥'2 GOY'851L°2 Aepno wniwaid pue swiejo
sainjipuadx3y
811'0L0'8 821°650°8 8/1°210'g £6.'296°L 861'986°L $321n0S3Y [e30] |
000°5£0°¢ 000'S£0‘c 000°GES'Z 000'SEL'Z L6ELLL aNU3AJY [Bjo L}
0 0 0 0 0 anuanay Jay1o
0 0 0 0 0 pund juswdolaAa(] V1Y wolj Jajsuel]
000°'000'¢ 000°000°¢ _ooo.oom.w 000°001°2 0 pung [eiauag) WoJj Jajsues|
000'Ge 000'Ge 000°GE 000°ce L6€°LLL awoouj JusunsaAuj
anuaAay

821°L¥0°'S 821°920°G 8L1°28Y'S £61°128'S 108°808°L souejeg m:_zc_mmm_

ue|d ueld jobpng uopjoalouyg jenjoy

1£AMA €202 [AA\ T4 Leoe 0z0c

sisAjeuy aouejeg pun4 asueinsuj

4 LNJWHOVLLY



9G6'€92'1 956'¥82Z°L 956°682Z°L | E A 966‘88Z°L aouejeg Bujpug]
0 0 Io Io 0 Aiug jeusnop Buljouoosy
000'SS 000'GS Jooo'ss Jooo‘ss 128161 sainjipuadxy jejo |
0 0 0 0 0o sainyjpuadx3 Jayo
0 0 0 pund jeJauscs) sy 0} JaJSUBL|
000°GS 000'sS 000'8S 000'8S 125°15) sjuswied yjausg
sainjipuadxy
956'8¢¢’L 956'6£¢'L 956'CYe’l 956°LYE’L £8Y' 0Vl S82.Nn0say [ej0} |
000'vS 000'vS jooo'vs 000°6S $0.°'c9 anuaAdy [ejo)
000°0Y 000°0¥ 000°0¥ _coo.mv 000'0S pund |elausg wodj Jajsued]
000'vL 000'v) 000'1) 000°vL ¥0.'¢€l SUWIooU| JuBw}saAU|
anuaAay
956'v8Z‘L 956'582'1L 95668Z°L 956'882°L 6LL9¢€"L mucm_mmhmc_::_mmm_
ue|d ueld jobpng uojjoafoud lenjoy
y202 €202 (4114 Lzoz 0202

sisAjeuy aouejeg pun4 uoisuad |ejuswa|ddng

O INJWHOVLLY



0S5°0S 0SS'eS 055°9S 0S5°65 055°LS aouejeg buipu3|
0 0 0 0 0 Anu3 jeusnop Bujjiouoday
000's2 000'62 000°52 jooca‘oz £09°0Z ssinyipuadxy jejol]
0 0 0 0 0 Bujuiel)
000'sz 000'sz 000'se 000°02 L09'02 slsy| pajejay 3 jende)
sainjipuadxy
0S5'G.L 055'8. joss'ie 10s5°6.L 151'8L S92.4n0say [ej0) |
00022 000°2Z 00022 00022 £66°Z1 anuaAay [ejo |
0 0 0 0 0 anuaAsy Jaylo
0002 000°C 000°2 0002 oy aLIOJU| JUBLL)SAAUY]
0 0 0 0 0 anuaaay Buiuies] Juswaoiojug me
000°0¢ 000°02 000°0¢2 000°02 252 dNUBASY JUBLIBdIOJUT ME']
anuaAay
0G5°ES 06595 j0ss‘eg Joss'ls $91'G9 souejeq mc_:c_mmm_
ue|d ue|d yebpng uonoefoid [enjoy
y20¢ £202 ceoe Leoe 0202

sisA|euy aouejeg pun4 Juswasioug me

H LN3IWHOVLLY



8€5'29.°28 £26'¢8L'C0l 80£'G06°L0L fc69'Lov'00L 810'868'Z5 [ejo L

¥¥0'666'€9 £v9'cee’ss 1000'000's8 000'000°68 0 uofjezijiqels anuaAsy

8€1'069'9 085'008'S 12.'208'Yy 086'996'¢ 20€'250'c §Z0Z AlanoH / 0Z0z :Aiejes :Aed yyiz

L12'89%¥' Th'eov'e 018eSp'e 06v°'120°¢ YLV'TPS OY %2035 Buljjoy

66.'268'C 0£2'298'2 I620'1¥8°C L11'008'C Zy0'89.°C uojjezijejidsoy

LEV'LBL'E 1£0'984'¢ Py1'GLL'C 8yl'sel'e 208'c0.'2 leng

£19'G56'E 066'LV6°E ¥GGZE6'E 82.'9.8'¢€ 861°1£8'¢E saduasqy pajesuadwio)
saauejeg buijjoy

8€6'29.'28 £26'¢81'c0L 20£'506°L0L _mmw. Lov‘ool  }8.0°'868°2S asuejeg buipuz|

000°005°LE 000°000°01 000°000°0} jooo‘000'sy 000°0S¥'L sainypuadxy |ejo} |

000°'005°LZ 0 0 0 0 (uoneziigelS dnNUBABY) puUn4 [BJSUSS) 0} Jojsuel]

0 0 0 0 000°0S+'1 (¥20z - Aed Ui/Z) pund [eiaus9 0} Jajsuel]

000°000°01 000'000'0L 000'000°01 000'000'6% 0 (300)g Buijjoy) pun4 juswdojpasq V1Y 0) Jajsuel]

0 0 0 0 0 (uonezieydsoH) pun4 jeiauas) 0} Jajsuel]

0 0 0 0 0 (1end) pund [esaus9 o} Jajsuel]

0 0 0 0 0 (seoussqy pajesuadwo)) pun4 jelauac) o0} Jajsuel]

sainjipuadxy

8£6'29Z'vLL

£26'€8L'cLL

810°8YE'YS

S92IN0SaY jejo ]

519'820°L1 519'8.2'LL 82Z'v18'C) SNUBA3Y [ejo ]
0 0 0 0 000'00L BNUBASY JaLO
0 0 0 000'000'S8 0 UOHEZIIGE)S 8nusAsy 10} 49 WOl Jajsuel|
619'8/8 519'8/8 519'8./8 519'8.8 519'8.8 Aed Y.z 1o} 49 wouy Jeysuel|
000°00001 000'000°01 00000001 000°000°01 000°'000'01 aAI9s3Y %00)g Buljjoy Joj 49 woyy Jajsuel|
0 0 0 0 0 uonezijeydsoH Joj 49 wolj Jasuel|
0 0 0 0 0 fond 10} 49 woy Jajsues|
0 0 0 0 0 S92U3sqy pajesuadwon 10} 45 Woly 13jsuel]
000°002 000°00¥% 000°629 000629 €19'G68'L SWOodU} JuswsaAul
anusAsy
£26'¢8L'c0L 80£'G06°L0L £69°1L07'00L 810'868°'26 058'cLY LY aouejeq m:_cc_mmm_
ue|d ue|d jabpng uopoaloid |enjoy
202 PXAITA [AAI]A (XYAIYA 0c0¢

sisAjeuy aouejeg pun aAlasay

1 LINJWHOVLLVY



£6.'€66'v81

188'€68°'€£Z

avp'szo'sie

06.'L80°2€2

aouejeq Buipug ajqejieAy

sisAleuy aosuejeg spund ||V

f LNSJWHOVLLY

50.'290°'€ey 0£5°69.'96¢€ 069°'Zye'9zy L¥9'066'€2S  [LS0'yTY 9ES sainjipuadxy {ejot
0Sv'921'6 0S6'LLY'6 002'¢L8'LL Jooo'yza‘al 012'182'9) 30IAI9G 1qeQ
928'ses'/2L $68'L¥6'P0L 029'v£8'9¢gl ZSL'VLLVLBL  |PIV'EEL'LL Aepno eyde)
£16'661'01 £00'€02'0l 0LG'2.L'01 00€'60£'29 Zse'vLL'g sainypuadx3 Jayi0
068'02¢'6 000'6E2'6 000°051°6 862'025'8 0916652 uojjepodsuel] paseyoind
£85'cLL'2e G19'c86°LZ 102'998'L2 ¥SL'vov'sl 605°608'8l s[eusjel g saoineg
000'00€'el 000'00Z'cl 000'00L'€L €12'165'21 sov'Lve'el Asojusauy
209162’y ovv'sie'y 9€9'6. L'y 90008t 20¥'9.5'¢ saiiN
871°055'01 $09°005°01 6L LSY'0L _mE.mS.m 059°08.'8 (seo “umd "doid ‘OND ‘|8seid ) jend
£ee'yie’ole y90'z10'cle $01'606'802 619'0€6'S6L  j0EE'L18'06) S80JAI8G |auuosiad
sainjipuadxy
867950809 LI¥'€99'0£9 $82°29¢'L89 180'0L9°6€2  |/p8°LOY'89S s@oinosay [ejot]
Z19'29L'v.e ZZ8'EY3'69¢E 9€8'98L° LIy 862'8.6°205  |92.'989'¥Zy anuaAady jejol |
0 0 o] 10 0 SPead0id adIAIg 19eQ
000°0L6'L 000°0L6°L 000'016°2 /G69'218'02 52016162 anuansy Jayi0
000'915°L 000'9LE‘L 000'9.9°L 218'60L")L L6E‘CLB'E 3WOoU| Juaw)saAU|
859'v8e’L 865°9¢L'01 86G'9¢L0l GLE'VOP'0L 189201 a8
0 0 £€£'661°18 880'G18'vS dyv
0 0 Io 29%'911°'L9 0LL'2L6°LLL VVYSHHD / 10V S3HVD
09%'c82'88 969'869°'08 962'601°901 L02'ce9'Z6 1.2'0002H jelapad
$89'208'25¢2 69.°Gv8°'LtT 8Y0'986°2VC glo'lzz'gez  [89v'ivl'oLe Xe] as) g sejes
018's92'22 6G.'9¢6°Le £96'612°1C 815'705°'L2 $99'P¥0've saiey Jabuassey
anuaAay
188°€68°€€T $65'618'092 9yY'S29°6LZ Jo6LLE0°282  |LZL'GEZ8'EVL aouejeg m:_cc_mmm_
uejd ueid }abpng uoposfoid |enjoy
1 ZA A €202 [AAITA 1202 0c0e



RESOLUTION NO. 2021-112

MAKING APPROPRIATIONS FOR THE CURRENT EXPENSES AND OTHER
EXPENDITURES FOR THE GREATER CLEVELAND REGIONAL TRANSIT
AUTHORITY DURING FISCAL YEAR (“FY”) 2022

WHEREAS, the Authority has both a legal and managerial requirement to establish the
revenues to be received for the upcoming fiscal year, including all taxes, user fees, and other
types of revenues, as well as estimates of all expenditures or outlays for the operation of this
public transportation system in the fiscal year to be paid or met from said revenue; and

WHEREAS, in order to meet those requirements, a budget for the fiscal year
beginning January 1, 2022 and ending December 31, 2022 (“FY 2022 Budget") was prepared;

and

- WHEREAS, said budget has been made conveniently available for public inspection
for at least ten (10) days by having at least two (2) copies thereof on file in the GCRTA Office of
Management and Budget; and

WHEREAS, the Operational Planning & Infrastructure Committee of the Board of
Trustees discussed the 2022 budget on November 16, 2021 and December 7, 2021, and public
hearings were held on November 16, 2021 and December 7, 2021, with public notices given by
publication in the Cleveland Plain Dealer on October 22, 2021, October 24, 2021, November 2,
2021 and November 5, 2021 and the Call & Post on October 20, 2021, October 22, 2021,
November 2, 2021, and November 3, 2021, as well as by posting of notice in the first floor lobby
of the Authority’s Main Office Building, the Authority's Facebook page, and Twitter page.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Authority, Cuyahoga County, Ohio:

Section 1. That the appropriations for the current expenses and other expenditures of
the Authority, during the period of January 1, 2022 through December 31, 2022 (“Fiscal Year
2022"), are as indicated below. Furthermore, in order that the amounts expended and
encumbered in each classification during Fiscal Year 2022 are set aside and appropriated, the
Board hereby sets aside and appropriates the following:

General Fund

2022 Budget
Appropriation
Operations Division
31 PARATRANSIT DISTRICT
Personnel Services $ 16,290,915
Other Expenditures 8,839,535
25,130,450
32 RAIL DISTRICT
Personnel Services 22,590,142
Other Expenditures 4,744,907

27,335,049



Resolution No. 2021-112

Page 2
2022 Budget
Appropriation
33 ASSET & CONFIGURATION MANAGEMENT
Personnel Services 1,065,367
Other Expenditures 977,751
’ ' 2,043,118
34 TRANSIT POLICE
Personnel Services 14,159,199
Other Expenditures 753,241
14,912,440
35 SERVICE MANAGEMENT
Personnel Services 5,842,643
Other Expenditures 1,074,551
6,917,194
36 POWER & WAY
Personnel Services 11,680,472
Other Expenditures 3,559,671
15,240,143
38 SERVICE QUALITY MGMT
Personnel Services 7,737,407
Other Expenditures 12,525
7,749,932
39 FLEET MANAGEMENT - ‘
Personnel Services 17,768,728
Other Expenditures 20,440,365
38,209,093
43 PASS THRUS
Personnel Services -
Other Expenditures 650,000
650,000
46 HAYDEN DISTRICT
Personne! Services 46,052,038
Other Expenditures 582,150
46,634,188
49 TRISKETT DISTRICT
Personne! Services 35,213,419
Other Expenditures 310,100
35,523,519
58 INTELLIGENT TRANSPORTATION SYSTEMS
Personnel Services 965,656
Other Expenditures 1,226,757
2,192,413
DIVISION TOTAL 222,537,539



Resolution No. 2021-112
Page 3

FINANCE DIVISION
10 OFFICE OF BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT
Personnel Services
Other Expenditures

60 ACCOUNTING
Personnel Services
Other Expenditures

62 SUPPORT SERVICES
Personnel Services
Other Expenditures

64 PROCUREMENT
Personnel Services
Other Expenditures

65 REVENUE
Personnel Services
Other Expenditures

67 OFFICE OF MANAGEMENT & BUDGET
Personnel Services
Other Expenditures

DIVISION TOTAL

ENGINEERING & PROJECT MANAGEMENT DIVISION
55 PROJECT SUPPORT
Personnel Services
Other Expenditures

57 PROGRAMMING & PLANNING
Personnel Services
Other Expenditures

80 ENGINEERING & PROJECT DEVELOPMENT
Personnel Services
Other Expenditures

DIVISION TOTAL

2022 Budget
Appropriation

$ 435,682
5,580

441,262

2,923,515
1,423,500

4,347,015

738,305
377,993

1,116,298

1,737,594
38,000

1,775,594

1,620,365
611,025

2,231,390

916,609
5,373,250

6,289,859
$ 16,201,418

$ 359,132
96,050

455,182

541,240
355,992

897,232

2,298,830
177,240

2,476,070
$ 3,828,484



Resolution No. 2021-112

Page 4
2022 Budget
Appropriation
LEGAL AFFAIRS DIVISION
15 SAFETY
Personnel Services $ 704,584
Other Expenditures ' " 289,910
994,494
21 LEGAL
Personnel Services 2,556,567
Other Expenditures 1,647,850
4,204,417
22 RISK MANAGEMENT
Personnel Services 810,498
Other Expenditures 4,167,777
4,978,275
DIVISION TOTAL $ 10,177,186
HUMAN RESOURCES DIVISION
14 HUMAN RESOURCES
Personnel Services $ 1,891,969
Other Expenditures 482,265
2,374,234
18 LABOR & EMPLOYEE RELATIONS
Personnel Services 1,226,305
Other Expenditures 497,355
1,723,660
30 TRAINING & EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT
Personnel Services 3,413,881
Other Expenditures 829,658
4,243,539
DIVISION TOTAL $ 8,341,433
EXECUTIVE DIVISION
12 EXECUTIVE
Personnel Services $ 483,813
Other Expenditures 595,339
1,079,152
16 SECRETARY/TREASURER - BOARD OF TRUSTEES
Personnel Services 152,573
Other Expenditures 146,700

299,273



Resolution No. 2021-112

Page 5
2022 Budget
Appropriation
19 INTERNAL AUDIT
Personnel Services 892,261
Other Expenditures 126,180
' 1,018,441
99 FUND TRANSFERS
Personnel Services -
Other Expenditures 65,147,080
65,147,080
DIVISION TOTAL $ 67,543,946
ADMINISTRATION & EXTERNAL AFFAIRS
53 ADMINISTRATION & EXTERNAL AFFAIRS
Personnel Services 2,248,259
Other Expenditures 1,062,550
3,310,809
DIVISION TOTAL $ 3,310,809
INNOVATION AND TECHNOLOGY DIVISION
61 INNOVATION AND TECHNOLOGY
Personnel Services 3,591,136
Other Expenditures 4,371,999
7,963,135
DIVISION TOTAL - $ 7,963,135
GRAND TOTAL $ 339,903,950

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT FUNDS
(Resolution No. 2021-055 approved on May 25, 2021, and Resolution No. 2021-112, pending
approval on December 21, 2021)

Construction and Acquisition of $136,834,620
Transit Facilities and Equipment

BOND RETIREMENT FUND

Debt Service — Principal ) $9,535,000
Debt Service - Interest 2,338,700
Other 1,500



Resolution No. 2021-112
Page 6

INSURANCE FUND

Claims & Premium Outlay $2,993,000

SUPPLEMENTAL PENSION FUND

Benefits Payments $58,000

LAW ENFORCEMENT FUND

Safety & Security Training $25,000
Capital & Related items 0

RESERVE FUND

Transfers to General Fund 0
Transfers to RTA Development Fund $10,000,000

CUMULATED APPROPRIATIONS

General Fund $339,903,950
Capital Improvement Funds L 136,834,620
Bond Retirement Fund 11,875,200
Insurance Fund 2,993,000
Supplemental Pension Fund 58,000
Law Enforcement Fund 25,000
Reserve Fund 10,000,000

Section 2. That transfers of funds may be made in this appropriation budget from one
division to another, or from one department to another, or from one line item to another, or from
one fund to another, and that transfers of funds shall be reported to the Board within thirty (30)
days after the end of the month in which said transfer occurred.

Section 3. As part of this appropriation, the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer
is granted the authority to upgrade or downgrade positions within the Authority provided that the
total number of positions approved in the budget is not exceeded. Furthermore, the General
Manager, Chief Executive Officer may transfer positions from one department to another so
long as the total number of positions approved in the budget is not exceeded.



Resolution No. 2021-112
Page 7

Section 4. That as part of this appropriation, the General Manager, Chief Executive
Officer is granted the authority to make expenditures for coffee, meals, refreshments, and other
amenities for Authority employees or other persons in furtherance of official business of
GCRTA. The appropriation includes $41,300 allocated to the following departments:

Meals & Concessions

Dept# Dept Name Budget
10 OFFICE OF BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT 400
12 EXECUTIVE 2,500
14 HUMAN RESOURCES 7,000
15 SAFETY 2,400
16 SECRETARY/TREASURER - BOARD OF TRUSTEES 1,500
18 LABOR & EMPLOYEE RELATIONS 2,800
19 INTERNAL AUDIT 800
21 LEGAL 1,000
22 RISK MANAGEMENT -
30 TRAINING & EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT 1,600
31 PARATRANSIT DISTRICT 100
32 RAIL DISTRICT 3,000
33 ASSET AND CONFIGURATION MANAGEMENT 250
34 TRANSIT POLICE 500
35 SERVICE MANAGEMENT 300
36 POWER & WAY 2,500
38 SERVICE QUALITY MANAGEMENT 1,000
39 FLEET MANAGEMENT 1,000
46 HAYDEN DISTRICT . ' , : 400
49 TRISKETT DISTRICT 400
53 ADMINISTRATION & EXTERNAL AFFAIRS 7,000
55 PROJECT SUPPORT 250
57 PROGRAMMING & PLANNING 100
58 INTELLIGENT TRANSPORTATION SYSTEMS 1,000
60 ACCOUNTING 600
61 INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY 750
62 SUPPORT SERVICES -
64 PROCUREMENT 200
65 REVENUE -
67 OFFICE OF MANAGEMENT & BUDGET 1,250
80 ENGINEERING & PROJECT DEVELOPMENT 800

Total 41,300

Section 5. That the Board of Trustees hereby approves the Greater Cleveland
Regional Transit Authority’s 2022 Management and Non-Bargaining Salary Structure, as set
forth in Attachment 1.

Section 6. That the FY 2022 Budget may from time to time be amended and additional
monies that may be received in FY 2022 may be appropriated.

Section 7. That this resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption.



Resolution No. 2021-112
Page 8

Attachment 1 — GCRTA 2022 Management & Non-Bargaining Salary Structure

Adopted: December 21, 2021
: President

Attest:

Secretary-Treasurer



Attachment 1

Min Mid Max
$125,294 $166,016 $206,737
$122,111 $161,796 $201,482
$106,183 $140,692 $175,201
$99,030 $131,214 $163,398
$91,877 $121,736 $151,595
$89,040 $117,977 $146,913
$85,689 $113,536 $141,383
$79,500 '$105,336 - $131,172
$77,079 $102,128 $127,178]
$68,820 $91,186 $113,552
$62,618 $82,969 $103,320
$56,920 $75,419 $93,917
$51,750 $68,568 $85,387
$47.,914 $63,486 $79,058
$38,454 $50,951 $63,448
$32,369 $42,888 $53,407




Form 100-326
07-03-97 I‘-l-ll Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority
N - STAFF SUMMARY AND COMMENTS

TITLE/DESCRIPTION: Resolution No.:

2021-113

AMENDING BUDGET APPROPRIATIONS FOR THE FY 2022 CAPITAL | Date:

IMPROVEMENT FUND BUDGET TO PROVIDE FOR AN INCREASE OF | December 16, 2021
$34,200,000 ' Initiator:

Office of Management &
Budget

ACTION REQUEST:
@ Approval O Review/Comment O Information Only O Other

1.0

2.0

3.0

4.0

5.0

6.0

7.0

8.0

PURPOSE/SCOPE: This action will authorize an increase in the Fiscal Year (“FY”) 2022 Capital
Improvement Fund budget appropriation by $34,200,000.

DESCRIPTION/JUSTIFICATION: The proposed amendment to the FY 2022 Capital
Improvement Fund budget will increase the overall appropriation by $34,200,000 in order to
establish the proper budget authority to cover rail car purchases, rehabilitation of Tower City East

Portal and Hayden District roof replacement.
PROCUREMENT BACKGROUND: Does not apply.

POLICY IMPACT: The FY 2022 Capital Improvement Fund budget provides for the upkeep of the
Authority’s existing infrastructure, facilities, equipment, vehicle replacement programs, and also
provides for the implementation of projects included in the Long-Range Plan. This increase in the
FY 2022 Capital Improvement Fund budget will establish sufficient budget authority to cover rail
car purchases, rehabilitate Tower City East Portal and Hayden District roof replacement in the FY

2022 Capital Budget.

ECONOMIC IMPACT: These revisions will increase the total FY 2022 Capital Improvement Fund
budget appropriation established in Resolution Nos. 2021-55 by $34,200,000. The FY 2022
Capital Improvement Fund budget will increase to $136,834,620.

ALTERNATIVES: Not approve the budget revision as proposed. This would leave insufficient
budget in the Capital Improvement Fund to cover the additional anticipated expenses.

RECOMMENDATION: The proposed amendment to the FY 2022 Capital Improvement Fund
budget appropriation was reviewed by the Board’s Operational Planning & Infrastructure
Committee on December 7, 2021. It is recommended that the Board adopt the amended FY
2022 Capital Improvement Fund budget appropriation as proposed.

ATTACHMENTS:

A. 2022 —~ 2026 Amended Combined Capital Improvement Plan
B. 2022 — 2026 Amended RTA Development Fund Capital Improvement Pian
C. 2022 - 2026 RTA Capital Fund Capital Improvement Plan




Staff Summary And Comments 2021-113
Development Fund Appropriation
Page 2’

Recommended and certified as appropriate to the availability of
funds, legal form and conformance with the Procurement
requirements.

G/eée;ral Manager, Chief Executivg Offiber




7l5'660°'9£9$  298'1.9'8ZL$  0LY'660°lCL$  928'SeSlZLS vS8'IpEWOLS  029'FE89el$ SIVIOL

000°005°'+$ 000‘00¢$ 000'00¢$ 000‘00¢$ 000°‘00¢$ 000‘00€$ Si3juad) Jisuel |

051°'265°'994$ 000°05¥°12$ 059'v08°Lv$ 005'268°Lv$ 005'286°'12$ 005'29%'6€$ wesBold uawaorjday 1en ey
000°00Z°991% 000°005‘0€$ 000°000'vE$ 000'00%°'6€$ 000'0S5°‘0¢$ 000°'052°bE$ sjoafoid jrey

000'005°5}$ 000°005°+1$ 000°000'$ 000°000°}$ ooo.,oco.—.w 000°000°1$ ‘quiiay “1adOrIuleIN 2ARUSARIY
005°282'v5% 005°2£9°42$ 00s°2£9°12% 005°2£9'2$ 005°2£9°2$ 005°2£8°s$ s3o8foad 18430

0se'ibeL8s 000'986'V1$ 05£°080°€L$ 000°085'€1$ 000'sL2°91$ 000°'086'82$ sjuawaacidwyj sapjioey
Tis'Lie0e8 rAX:WAN AL S 09L'0bZ'v$ 9.0'652'v$ POLLLL'LS 029'66¥'L3 Sa]91YaA g Juswdinby
000°295°501L$ 052'990°12$ 05.'990°12% 052'990°123 052'990'b2$ 000'00¢'LZ$ weltboid Juswarcidwi sng
000°529°'2$ 0$ 0$ 000‘00%'c$ 000°'s25'c$ 000'004% sobeteg sng

9202-2202 ueld 9z0z uejd 620z ueld y202 ueld £202 1eBpng zzoz  AHO9D31VI 133roud

Auoyny jabpng pauiquion

NV1d LNIJWIAOUJWI TVLIdVO QINISINOD AIANINY 9202 - 2202

V INJWHOVLLY




260°€69'719$ 798°c29'vZL$ 0.8'G80'CEL$ 0LE'CIV'EZI$  01£°€/8°00L$  0Z9'9£9°ZEL$ STv10l

000'005'L$ 000'00€$ 000'00€$ ooo‘ooc$ 000‘00¢$ 000°'00€$ Si3jus Jisuel)

051'265'991$ 000°05%12$ 059°v08°L¥$ 005°268°'1¥$ 005°286°12$ 005°29%¥°6€$ weibo.d juswasejday Jeo jey
000'00Z°99L$ 000°005‘0€$ 000°'000'vE$ 000‘00v'6e$ 000°'055'0¢$ 000'0S.°1€$ syoaloud ey

000°005'S51$ 000°005°}1$ 000°000°L$ 000°000°}$ 000'000°1$ 000°000°}$ "quiey “1edQ Ul sAflUaAId
00s°28€'VS$ 005°2€9'1Z$ 00s'2e9°'12$ 005°2£9°2$ 005°'2£9'7$ 005'2£8'5$ sjasfoid Jeylo

05£°9v5'sL$ 000°9L9°CE$ osc‘oll'0L$ 000°02Z°L1$ 000's0E'V1L$ 000's25'92$ sjuawacldwy sapioe]
z60°022°128 zio‘eev'ss 029'905°2$ 029'905°2$ 0Z9'905°5$ 029'952's$ $3]214aA g Juswdinby
000°295°S01L$ 05.'990°12$ 05.'990°12$ 05.'990'12$ 05.'990'12$ ooo‘ooc‘i12$ weiboud Juswaaosduyj sng
000°529°2$ 0$ 0$ 000°00%'c$ 000°szs‘es 000°004$ sebeien sng

9202-2202 Ueld 9202 Ueld 5Z20Z ueld y20z ueid €202 3ebpng zz0z A¥O0931VD 103roud

ALIHOHLINY 1390and ANNd LNJNdJOT3A3A V1Y
NV1d LINJWIAOHUdNI TVLIdVD ANNd LINJINHOTIAIA AIANIINY V1Y 9202 - 2202

g INJWHOVLLVY



08v'z0¥‘0z$  000'VS0'v$  OPSELO'PS  959°290'v$  vSY'PIO'PS  000°86L°v$  SIVLOL

0% 0% 04 03 0% 03 SJejua Jisuel]

0% 0% 0% 0% 0$ 0% syosfold jley

0% 0% 0% 0$ 0% 0% ‘quiay ‘Iad/JuleiN sAUSAAL]
0% 0% 0% 03 04 0$ syoalold 1210

|ooo'sezLL$  ooo‘0le‘z$ 000°0L€°Z$ 000°0L£°Z$ 0000 Wv.ww 000°55V°Z$ sjuswiaAoldui] sanijioey
losy‘z09'8s  000'vbLLS obs‘coL'L$ 95¥'zSL 14 v8v'v99°L$ 000°€PL’L$ se]dIyap g Juawdinby

0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% weibould juawianoidwy sng

0$ 0$ 0% 03 03 0% sabeleg sng

9202-220¢  uejd 9z0¢ ueld 5202 uejd $20¢ ue|d €202 196png zz0z A¥0931V9 103Aroyd

ALIMOHLNY 139aNg dNN4d 1VLIdVO VLY
NV71d LNJWIAOUAINI TVLIdVO ANNH TVLIdVO VL 9202 - 2202

O INJWHOVLLVY




RESOLUTION NO. 2021-113

AMENDING BUDGET APPROPRIATIONS FOR THE FY 2022 CAPITAL
IMPROVEMENT FUND BUDGET TO PROVIDE FOR AN INCREASE OF
$34,200,000

WHEREAS, there is both a legal and a managerial requirement to establish the
revenues to be received for the upcoming fiscal year, including all taxes, user fees, and other
types of revenues, as well as estimates of all expenditures or outlays for the capital programs of
this public transportation system to be paid or met from said revenue during each fiscal year;
and

WHEREAS, in order to meet those requirements, a Capital Improvement Fund budget
for the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority (“Authority”) for Fiscal Year (“FY”) 2022,
beginning January 1, 2022 and ending December 31, 2022, was prepared and adopted by the
Board of Trustees on May 25, 2021 through Resolution No. 2021-55; and

WHEREAS, the Authority will increase the appropriations for the Capital Improvement
Fund by $34,200,000 to enable the Authority to purchase railcars, rehabilitate Tower City East
Portal, replace roofing at Hayden District and align the appropriations for FY 2022 Capital
Budget.

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Authority, Cuyahoga County, Ohio:

Section 1. That the appropriation budget set forth in Resolution No. 2021-55, adopted
May 25, 2021, be and is hereby amended as follows:

FY 2022 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT FUND BUDGET APPROPRIATION

Current 2022 Appropriation Amended 2022 Appropriation

$102,634,620 $136,834,620
Section 2. That Resolution No. 2021-55 shall remain unchanged in all other respects.

Section 3. That this resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption.

Adopted: December 21, 2021

President

Attest:

Secretary-Treasurer



1(};85“26 Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority
07-03-97 STAFF SUMMARY AND COMMENTS

Resolution No.:

TITLE/DESCRIPTIONZ
ESTABLISHMENT OF A THREE YEAR OVERAL ANNUAL DBE GOAL | 2021-114
FOR FEDERAL FISCAL YEARS 2022 THRU 2024 Date:

December 16, 2021

Initiator:

Office of Business
Development

ACTION REQUEST:
Approval O Review/Comment O Information Only 0O Other

1.0

2.0

3.0

4.0

5.0

6.0

7.0

8.0

PURPOSE/SCOPE: This action will aliow the Authority to establish a three-year overall
annual goal for Disadvantage Business Enterprise (DBE) participation for Federal Fiscal
Years (FFYs) 2022 thru 2024.

DESCRIPTION/JUSTIFICATION: Pursuant to the Federal Transit Administration (FTA)

regulations for its DBE program, Title 49 of the Code of Federal Regulations Part 26, as

amended, the Authority, as a recipient of funding from the FTA, is required to establish a
three-year DBE participation goal.

The purpose of the DBE program is to help create a level playing field as related to past
community-wide disparities in local contracting opportunities, so that DBE firms can more
fairly compete in all facets of local contracting opportunities. The program objectives are
to increase the number and quality of bids received from and contracting done with DBE

firms.
PROCUREMENT BACKGROUND: Does not apply.

AFFIRMATIVE ACTION/DBE BACKGROUND: in compliance with federal regulations and
guidelines, the Authority proposes a three-year overall annual goal of 21.5% relative to
DBE participation, in the aggregate, of ali federally-assisted contracts of $25,000.00 of
more awarded by the Authority during FFYs 2022 thru 2024.

POLICY IMPACT: This action is required to comply with the Authority’s DBE Program
and the Code of Federal Regulations, 49 CFR Part 26.

ECONOMIC IMPACT: This action supports the continuation of GCRTA’s eligibility for
federal financial assistance. FTA provides grants in support of GCRTA's Capital Program.

ALTERNATIVES: Disapprove the establishment of the three-year overall annual goal for
DBE patrticipation. Disapproval of the three-year overall annual DBE goal would adversely

impact and delay the awarding and approval of grants by FTA.

RECOMMENDATION: The proposed DBE goal FFYs 2022 thru 2024 was reviewed by
the Board of Trustees Organizational, Services & Performance Monitoring Committee at
the December 7, 2021 meeting and recommended for award. Staff recommends approval
of the resolution to establish an overall DBE goal of 21.5% for DBE participation in
federally assisted contracts FFYs 2022 thru 2024.



Staff Summary & Comments 2021-114

Disadvantage Business Enterprise Goal
Page 2

9.0 ATTACHMENTS: None.

Recommended and certified as appropriate to the
availability of funds, legal form and conformance with the
Procurement requirements.

/,wé/%

General Manager Chief Executive Officed




RESOLUTION NO. 2021-114

AUTHORIZING THE ESTABLISHMENT OF A THREE-YEAR OVERALL
ANNUAL GOAL FOR DISADVANTAGED BUSINESS ENTERPRISE (DBE)
PARTICIPATION IN THE AUTHORITY'’S FEDERALLY FUNDED CONTRACT
PROCUREMENT OPPORTUNITIES FOR FEDERAL FISCAL YEARS 2022
THRU 2024, AND IT'S SUBMISSION TO THE FEDERAL TRANSIT
ADMINISTRATION

WHEREAS, the Moving Ahead for Progress in the 215t Century Act (MAP-21) and the
Federal Transit Administration regulations for the Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE)
program, Title 49 of the Code of Federal Regulations Part 26, require the establishment of an
overall goal for the participation of DBE’s in federally funded contracts; and

WHEREAS, the Authority’s DBE Program requires that the General Manager, Chief
Executive Officer establish a three-year DBE goal for the use of DBE’s in contracts led by the

Authority; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Federal Transit Administration DBE Program guidelines, the
Authority has developed a three-year overall annual goal of 21.5% for DBE participation in
federally funded contracts awarded by the Authority in Federal Fiscal Years (FFYs) 2022 thru
2024; and

WHEREAS, the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer has met with executive staff
to propose a three-year overall annual goal for DBE participation in Authority contracts during
FFY 2022 thru 2024, commencing October 1, 2021 and ending September 30, 2024.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Authority, Cuyahoga County, Ohio:

Section 1. That the three-year overall annual goal for Disadvantaged Business
Enterprise (DBE) participation is set at 21.5% of the total dollar amount of federally funded
contracts awarded by the Authority during Federal Fiscal years (FFYs) 2022 thru 2024.

Section 2. That the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer of the Authority is
directed to advise the Federal Transit Administration accordingly and publish this goal in
accordance with the requirements of the DBE Program.

Section 3. That the three-year overall annual goal hereby established for FFYs 2022
thru 2024 is subject to review, modification, and approval by the Federal Transit Administration.

Section 4. That this resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption.

Adopted: December 21, 2021

President

Attest:

Secretary-Treasurer



v Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority
07-03-97 STAFF SUMMARY AND COMMENTS

TITLE/DESCRIPTION: Resolution No.:
CONTRACT: PURCHASE OF PROPERTY INSURANCE PROGRAM | 2021-115

FROM VARIOUS UNDERWRITERS Date:
December 16, 2021
VENDOR:  AON RISK SERVICES NORTHEAST, INC. Initiator:
Risk Management
AMOUNT:  NTE $1,183,061.00 FOR PERIOD OF TWELVE Department
MONTHS

ACTION REQUEST:
Approval O Review/Comment [ Information Only O Other

1.0

2.0

3.0

PURPOSE/SCOPE: This action will provide the Authority with insurance to protect the
physical assets of the Authority for a period of twelve (12) months.

DESCRIPTION/JUSTIFICATION: The Authority requires all-risk property insurance to
protect its physical assets in case of fire, explosion, windstorm and similar perils. The
current property insurance policy expires January 1, 2022. The detailed results of that
program renewal were summarized in the presentation made to the Board of Trustees on
December 7, 2021.

PROCUREMENT BACKGROUND: GCRTA carries an all-risk property insurance policy
which protects the physical assets of GCRTA from fire, windstorm, explosion, and similar
perils. Incumbent Carriers are Liberty Mutual and Evanston; Two Programs; Total Insured

~ Value $1.85 billion:

* The first program is written by Liberty Mutual and is for the coverage of ali GCRTA
real and personal property including rolling stock when garaged.
* Blanket Limit: $500 million , Deductible $250,000
« The second program is a stand-alone Rolling Stock policy written by Evanston
Insurance Company and specifically provides coverage for GCRTA Rolling Stock

when rolling (both rail and bus).
* Blanket Limit: $25,000,000, Deductible $500,000

Given the combination of no incumbent carrier, the very difficult property insurance
market in 2020, and some recent loss experience in our record, it was an extreme
situation. We were told to expect a 40 to 50% increase given those factors. However,
the result of last year's renewal was a 31% increase which was 12% under budget.
This year, we were told that the market has improved somewhat and to budget 15 to

20%.

Since we conducted a full scale marketing effort in 2020, our brokers conducted only a
very limited marketing exercise this year and negotiating with incumbent markets.

We have received the results of the marketing and negotiation efforts and they are as
follows. Liberty quoted a 7% rate increase; Evanston quoted a 2.5% rate increase.
After applying these rates against updated total insured values (TIV), the resulting
premium is $1,183,061.00, an increase of approximately $80,000.00 or a 7% increase
over the expiring premium of $1,102,542.00. We are pleased to report that this amount
is 7.2% below the budgeted amount of $1,268,000.00.



Staff Summary & Comments

2021-115

Property Insurance Renewal
Page 2

4.0
5.0

6.0

7.0

8.0

9.0

Both Liberty Mutual and Evanston Insurance Company carry the highest possible
financial security rating offered by Best’s Insurance Rating service (A XV), demonstrating
their financial stability and ability to pay claims. The Procurement Department has
determined the negotiated rates to be fair and reasonable to the Authority.

AFFIRMATIVE ACTION/DBE BACKGROUND: Does not apply.

POLICY IMPACT: Does not apply.

ECONOMIC IMPACT: This insurance policy shall be funded through the General Fund,
Risk Management Department budget, payable with 2022 funds (contingent upon Board
approval of the 2022 Operating Budget) at a total contract amount not to exceed
$1,183,061.00 for the twelve (12) month period beginning January 1, 2022,

ALTERNATIVES: Reject this offer. Rejection of this offer will leave the Authority without
property insurance, putting substantial assets of the Authority at risk.

RECOMMENDATION: This property insurance program was discussed by the Board of
Trustees Audit, Safety Compliance and Real Estate Committee at the December 7, 2021
meeting. It is recommended that the submittal of the underwriters through Aon Risk
Services Northeast, Inc., be accepted and the resolution passed authorizing the General
Manager, Chief Executive Officer to purchase the property insurance policies.

ATTACHMENTS: None.

Redommended and certifiéd as appropriate to the’
availability of funds, legal form and conformance with the

Procurewqmrements.

Genéral Manager, Chief Exeeu/ tive Officer




~ RESOLUTION NO. 2021-115

AUTHORIZING THE PURCHASE OF PROPERTY INSURANCE FROM
VARIOUS INSURANCE UNDERWRITERS THROUGH AON RISK SERVICES
NORTHEAST, INC. FOR A PERIOD OF TWELVE (12) MONTHS FOR A TOTAL
CONTRACT AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $1,183,061.00 (GENERAL FUND,
RISK MANAGEMENT DEPARTMENT BUDGET)

WHEREAS, the Authority requires property insurance to protect its physical assets; and

WHEREAS, proposals from various underwriters have been received, and were
evaluated in accordance with the Authority’s Policies and Procedures; and

WHEREAS, the submittal of a group of underwriters through Aon Risk Services
Northeast, Inc., located at 950 Main Avenue, Suite 1600, Cleveland, Ohio 44113, to provide
property insurance coverage for a period of twelve (12) months was received, and after
negotiations, an amount not to exceed $1,183,061.00 for the twelve (12) month period was

agreed upon; and

WHEREAS, the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer deems the acceptance of the
submittal of various underwriters, through Aon Risk Services Northeast, Inc. for a property
insurance program, as modified by negotiations, to be the most advantageous to the Authority
and recommends acceptance thereof by the Board of Trustees.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Authority, Cuyahoga County, Ohio:

Section 1. That the submittal of a group of underwriters, through Aon Risk Services
Northeast, Inc., as modified by negotiations, to provide a property insurance program, for a
period of twelve (12) months, is hereby accepted as the most advantageous to the Authority,
price and all other factors considered.

Section 2. That the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer of the Authority be and
she is hereby authorized to enter into a contract with Aon Risk Services Northeast, Inc. for the
purchase of property insurance coverages from Liberty Mutual and Evanston Insurance
Company, and with such other carriers as the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer may
deem appropriate, to provide property insurance coverage up to the limit of $500,000,000 per
occurrence from January 1, 2022 to January 1, 2023, at premiums not to exceed $1,183,061.00.

Section 3. This insurance program shall be payable out of the General Fund, Risk
Management Department budget, payable with 2022 funds (contingent upon Board approval of
the 2022 Operating Budget), at a total amount not to exceed $1,183,061.00 for twelve (12)

months beginning January 1, 2022.

Section 4. That said agreement shall be binding upon and an obligation of the Authority
contingent upon future funding, compliance by the contractor to the Specifications and
Addenda, if any; the Affirmative Action Plan adopted by the Board of Trustees; bonding and
insurance requirements and all applicable laws relating to contractual obligations of the

Authority.



Resolution No. 2021-115
Page 2

Section 5. That this resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption.

Adopted: December 21, 2021

President

Attest:

Secretary-Treasurer



RESOLUTION NO. 2021-116

AUTHORIZING A SALARY ADJUSTMENT FOR ANTHONY A. GAROFOLI,
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR OF INTERNAL AUDIT

WHEREAS, pursuant to Article IX, Section 6 of the Bylaws of the Greater Cleveland
Regional Transit Authority (“Authority”), the Authority’s Board of Trustees (“Board”) is
responsible for making all personnel decisions regarding the Executive Director of Internal
Audit; and

WHEREAS, in 2021, the Board conducted an evaluation of the job performance of
Anthony A. Garofoli, Executive Director of Internal Audit and based on that evaluation, has
determined that a salary adjustment is warranted.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Authority, Cuyahoga County, Ohio:

Section 1. That the annual base salary for Anthony A. Garofoli, Executive Director of
Internal Audit shall be increased from $140,531.67, to an annual base salary of $144,752.43.

Section 2. That the increased annual base salary for Anthony A. Garofoli will be
retroactive to January 1, 2021 and will be effective December 12, 2021.

Section 3. That this resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption.

Adopted: December 21, 2021

President

Attest:

Secretary-Treasurer



TioZ adey

%00'00T %TL'S EST'TVEOZ  §  EBS'6BO'9SE $  OELTEVOLE §  %00°00T %66°TZ 9LT'E0E'Y S 86£%695'6T §  pUBEL  $
%IT'IE (%181} Teviotsn) T6b'ZP8'8ET 8YL'SZE'IET %S8't - E¥9'T6L S9T'99€ 806'LST'T
%95°bT - 880°STE'YS - S 880°GI8PS %00'0 - - - 3 -
%16°LT - 99b'9TY'L9 - $  99v'9TYL9 %000 - - - $ -
%00°0 - {oct'eLe'TTn) OLT'LLE'TIT  § - 9%00°0 - - - S -
%89°0 %60°0 11144 9SL'0EV'T $  900'€EV’T %520 %09V :114:24 T20'TY $  LIE'6S
%LE'0 - oro‘ovs EvLVI9 S E8L'vOY'T %BE'0 %ILES vY6TE 8LY'6S S Tw'e
%6T'T (%68'95) (906'LLE'TT} 00000002 $ 607298 %Ob'E - seL'ote - $  seL'ots
%80°0 (%5Z'59) {£90°0£S) 86€'718 $  SEE'Z8T %00'0 - {psz'at) (41414 $ -
H9E0 {%6TvS) {8vb's09'T) (2404114 S 9LETSET %280 (%L2'12) {8L0'ES) 1444574 $  VEV'9ST
! %800 {%e3°TH) {E6E'S0E'T) LY§'S60'E $SY06LT %LT'0 (%0t°s9) {b12's11) SP0'E8T TEE'EY
| %80°0 - L0b'86T SST'E6 $ 799162 %60'0 - Lzz'oz S8Z'T $  UsT
! %20°0 (%8998} (152265} 8LT'E89 $ L2016 %E0°0 {%96°05) {s8e's) ESY'9T $ 8908
%60°0 %9EGE 09€Z6 089'vET S Ov0'LZE %600 %L0'8 S89'T 988°0Z $  usw
%T1°0 (%91'12) {£€9'g01) 198°€0S S bez'iee %000 - (esy'zzr) 41 244 $ -
%8T°0 (%9£'95) {zL'Les) €LL°085°T $  T0SESY %50'0 {%v0'6Y) {65L°01} 6E6'TZ $  08TTT
%50'8S %68'ET 665'€¥9'97 ETY'S98'T6T T10°605'8TZ %ST'S8 %EG'8T TL0'SET'E 29E'T60°LT EEV'IZE'OL
: %50'8S %68'ET 665'EY9'9T €TY'S98'T6T  §  2ZT0'605'8TZ %ST'S8 %E6'8T TL0'SET'E ZIE'T60LT  §  EEv'ozEOr
| %9Z’'S (%ET'TT) {0T€'6Lv'T) ZER'S8Z'TT 225'908'61 %vL'6 %55'0Z 9LT'96E 97L'826°T 200'SZET
) %v0'T %E0'0 080T LST'L06'E $  LET'B06E %E9°T %99°€E vEZ'8e 508'162 S 6E0'06E
H2E'0 (%6€5°vE) (e6L'ev9) S9E'Y98'T $  s89s'ozz't %107 %251 SI9'E S8E'LET $  000'vZ
: %IE'0 %29°0p 000°ZEE STE'L18 $  SZEBKIT %102 - 099'6LY 14241 $  zog'osy
: %IY'T {%s1°22) {950'bz5'T) 911188’ $  080°Lse’s %Z6'T (%80°2v) (s19'zes) L1506 $  es8'Lsy
%LTT (%1eL) (LESPRa) $  698'S18'8 S TEEULLB S %9TE %ST'HT SBELYT $  u8'tes $  T9T'sSL s
; WL0LI0 %  3ONVHI% FINVIHVA alA alA WIOLI0%  IINVHI% INVIHVA HINOW HINOW
. AN3YHND 0z0z 1202 AN3WHND YA YOI AN3WYND

0202 ‘0f H3GWIAON ANV TZ0Z ‘0€ YIGWIAON GIONI GOI3d ELTR:[or]
1dd 0L 034VdINOD GIAIZIIY HSVD J0 LHO0d3Y
ALIOHLNY LUSNVYL TYNOIDIY ANVIZAIT) ¥31VINO KL

ANNJ WHINIO - §V3X

Uoday anuaAsy

ANNd TYHINID - GIAIEIIY HSVI TVLIOL

HSVD 40 $3)UN0S Y3HLO ANV SINIWISHNBINIIY TvLOL8NS
d¥Vv IviQ3d

YVSHYD E3IA34

1DV S3WVD WH3a3a4

S1d13934 SNOINVITIOSIN

JONVISISSY ONLLVYI4O Tvu3aad

{HILVIN 1201 ‘31V1S “IVH3Q34) IONVNILNIVIN JALINIAIYG
(HOLVIN TvD01 31VLS “IvH3Q34) INIWISENEWIIY LINVHD
SANNA3Y XV1 INVOHd/OND/ 1IN

3NN3A3Y ¥3HLO0 vL018NS
Y3HLO
JWNOINI LS3YILNE
IWOINI TVINIY
SNOISSINNOD S531 SIHDIY ONINVYN
SNOISSIWINOD/SNOISSZINOI/ONISLLYIAQY
B IHL

$31QIS8NS ONLLVY3JO 1VL0.18NS
XVL3SN B SVS
+$310158 INLLYEIJO

$34Vd YIDNISSVd TvLOLENS
ONLLDIDLL 3NGON
SSYd-N
SQYVIIYVL INJANLS - ASWD
S3IVS 13NILL/SSVd
S3UVd HEVD

S34vI JIDNI55Va



7401 @dey

%00°00T %0Z'LS DOY'EL6'9ET  §  9EL'LEV'9LE 9EE'BSY'BEZ  §  %00°00T %65°PT YIS'6E0'E S vUFET  §  09T'Eed0r
RIT'IE - TZO'ETE'ELT 8YL'STE'9ET ZLasT %S8'Y - 611'660'T 806°LST'T 681°8S
%9597